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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

18.
ENVIRONMENT
- WATER

AND ENERGY
CONSUMPTION

Reducing energy consumption stands as a paramount initiative in decarbonizing
our portfolios. We endeavour to promote efficient energy consumption and
management across all our operations within our business segments to diminish
our carbon footprint.

In the year under review, our total energy consumption for the year 2023 is
4.66 MW

Total Energy Consumption (Megawatt = MW) By Region In 2023

- Energy

Region Consumption (MW)
Kuching s

Miri Lol

Bintulu 0.85

Kuala Lumpur 0.02

In addition to the above, Bintulu has generated 0.03 MW of renewable energy
from solar panels installed at the Bintulu Worker’s Village

Note1: = We consider on average, there are 260 five-day workdays a year in Malaysia.
Note2:  The energy consumption table above factors in these locations only:

»  Kuching: Naim HQ, show units, shoplots, sales gallery, and site office.

*  Miri: Site office, show units, Permy Mall, Naim Clubhouse South Lake, and
rented house.

» Bintulu: Site office, Naim Bintulu Street Mall, and Bintulu Worker’s Village.

*  Kuala Lumpur: Company car (fuel) for Bangsar Office.

Water Management

Acknowledging the crucial role of water in our operations, we have implemented
stringent measures and guidelines to guarantee water security. These measures
encompass a water management policy, standard operating procedures related to
water for all business divisions, initiatives to conserve water, and the exploration of
alternative water resources.

Total Water Consumption (Megalitres = MI) By Region In 2023

Water

Region Consumption (MI)
Kuching 1,343.92

Miri 78.59

Bintulu LU

Total 1,540.05

Note: The water consumption table above factors in these locations only:
* Kuching: NAIM HQ, shoplots, sales gallery, show units, and
site office.
*  Miri: Permy Mall, NAIM Clubhouse South Lake, sand operation site
office, and unsold units.
» Bintulu: NAIM Bintulu Street Mall, and Bintulu Worker’s Village.
+ Kuala Lumpur: Bangsar Office is unmanned therefore water is unutilised
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BUILDING VALUES SPIRITEDLY

Our Group’s sustainability focus is aimed at creating an equitable and inclusive
19 environment that drives performance, innovation and service excellence through
BleLDING A th_e attractiop, retention, and engagement of a talented and diverse workforce, in
SUSTAINABLE alignment with our H.l. - C.O.D.E.S. core values.

WORKFORCE OF Learning & Development

THE FUTURE

At NAIM, we focus on upgrading and re-skilling our talent pool by fostering their
continuing development of skills and competencies to achieve the organisation’s
immediate and long-term aspirations.

NAIM has launched NAIM Learning & Development curriculum which consists of
four (4) competency pillars of focus of our continuous strategy in ensuring NAIM
employees remain agile, resilient and thrive in a changing world.

The four (4) competency pillars are:

1. General Professional Development

2. Leadership Development

3. Technical Learning and Development (TLD)
4. Digital, Data and Technology Development

NAIM has achieved the following:
« 25,510 hours of training completed by employees.
* Average 48.31 hours per employee

In November 2023, the Company conducted Corporate Retreat atiCube Innovation,
iCom Square at Kuching, Sarawak with the theme of ‘Leadership For Change
Transforming Business & Navigating The Social Entrepeneurial Frontier’. The
participants discussed and brainstorm on the future and revamp strategies and
realizing NAIM’s mission to Build Value Spiritedly. The 2-day event was attended
by over 60 participants ranging from middle to top level management as well as
members of the Company’s Board of Directors.

NAIM’s “Leadership For Change” Corporate Retreat in 2023
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

19.
BUILDING A
SUSTAINABLE
WORKFORCE OF
THE FUTURE
(CONTINUED)

Talent Acquisition and Employer Branding

In 2023, the Company welcomed a total of 142 new hires, comprising 59 individuals
at the executive level and above, and 83 individuals in non-executive positions.

NEW EMPLOYEE HIRES 2023

» In addition to acquiring the best new talents, we also believe in retaining our
existing talent pool and developing and supporting them in their succession
and career development by upgrading and upskilling their performance and
potential via continuous training and development opportunities, as well as
various internal opportunities and internal succession.

NAIM INTERNSHIPS PROGRAMME

At NAIM, we believe that our Internship Programme enhances employer branding
by offering undergraduates the opportunity to gain practical work experience within
the Company. This initiative is aimed at better preparing students for the real work
environment upon their graduation.

We have offered internship opportunities to a total of 51 intern students from
various fields of study and from different local higher education institutions.

NAIM welcomes applications for internship opportunities throughout the year;
undergraduates are encouraged to apply at any time.

Internship opportunities are available all year-round and undergraduates may write
in and apply at any time.

Diploma in Information Technology
Diploma in Building

Bachelor of Quantity Surveying

Bachelor of Information and
Communication Technology

Bachelor of Computer Science
(Bioinformatics)

Bachelor of Business Administration
(Hons)

Bachelor in Acturial Science

Bachelor (Financial Mathematic)
with honours

0 1 2 3 4 5 6

Number of intern in 2023

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

» Employee engagement remains a priority to NAIM, as we continue to invest in
various activities to improve and measure the level of our employee engagement.
+ Conducted ‘Stay Interview’ to:
« Get a better understanding of morale, satisfaction, and engagement at
NAIM.
+ To find what will help retention and make our employees satisfied and
motivated.
» Established Wellness @NAIM to advocate holistic wellbeing and engagement,
end route to improved motivation, productivity and set performance.
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DIVERSITY, EQUITY AND INCLUSION (DEI)

The Group benefits from workforce diversity as it expands our perspective and
improves decision-making. We aim to create a well-balanced team by combining
talents from various age groups and ethnic backgrounds, while also ensuring a
19. gender balance.

BUILDING A

SUSTAINABLE We uphold our commitment to diversity through our stance as an equal opportunity
WORKFORCE OF employer. Our recruitment is merit-based, focusing on individual qualifications rather
THE FUTURE than factors such as religion, race, gender, or background. Career advancement
(CONTINUED) and promotions are contingent upon individual performance and the demonstrated
leadership potential of employees.

In line with our commitment to inclusivity, we have established a grievance channel
for reporting instances of bullying or harassment. Alternatively, employees facing
harassment can approach their immediate supervisor or a member of the HR
team. Our HR department handles all cases of harassment.

The following data is true as at 31 December 2023.

GENDER DISTRIBUTION

The Group wholeheartedly backs women in leadership and other executive roles.
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Note': Senior Management count excludes Chairman, and Managing Director. Non-executive includes technical staff and general workers/foreign
workers.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

AGE GROUP DISTRIBUTION'

»  Majority of our workforce consits of individuals within the age group of

19. “30-59” followed by “below 30” and lastly “above 60”.
BUILDING A
SUSTAINABLE
WORKFORCE OF Directors
THE FUTURE
(CONTINUED)
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Note': Senior Management count excludes Chairman, and Managing Director. Non-executive includes technical staff and general workers/foreign
workers.
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ONWARDS AND
UPWARDS: OUR
SUSTAINABLE (ESG)
JOURNEY
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Our sustainability journey extends far beyond 2023. Looking ahead, the Group is
committed to crafting a visionary roadmap, ‘NAIM Sustainability 2050, aimed at
spearheading ESG initiatives across all fronts.

The roadmap will outline a suggested timeframe in which the Group is to carry out
strategic sustainability initiatives, as well as highlight the initiatives to enhance our
sustainability agenda and reporting. It's crucial to acknowledge that the roadmap
will be subject to fine-tuning per our baseline measurements, and annual review
processes to ensure its continued relevancy.

While the roadmap is until 2050, our immediate focus lies on 2030, aligning with
Sarawak’s Sustainable Blueprint, a comprehensive roadmap guiding all sectors
and communities towards the State’s 2030 sustainability goals.

As we usher in the auspicious Year of the Dragon, the Group stands ready to fortify
its commitment to embedding sustainability initiatives continuously. This concerted
effort will reflect our unwavering dedication to transparency, accountability, and the
enduring pursuit of sustainability excellence in response to material matters.
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FOR A SUMMARY OF THE DATA IN SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
KINDLY REFER TO THE APPENDIX “PERFORMANCE DATA TABLE”
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CORPORATE EVENTS

NAIM Chinese New Year (CNY) Open House

"

NAIM cpen its coors via open house and engagement activiies Always a highlight armong the community, 2023

as with past years, continue to attract hundreds of visitors including prospective NAIM home owners

Aram Ngerami Gawai

The Harves! Festval or Gawat, 1S a celeDiabon of bountiful natwe and the
apayt of commumty Being community drven, NAIM organised a gathenng in
all regions to beng the local community In our cevelopment areas (Kuching
Paragon, Bk Paragon and Bandar Baru Permyjaya) © stengthen the

spint Of patnershed and togethernmess
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NAIM Ramadan Bubur Lambuk

Embracing the spint of thankfulness, forgivenass anad community NAIM cezed the opportunity to
conduct numerus engaging vents such as a Bubur Lambuk give away and several community
angagemant, both intermally and axternally

|

Konvol Kembara 60 Tahun Sarawak
Merdeka

its epicenter

As Sarawak reached a milestone wath 80 years
independance. NAIM s proud 1o be one of the selected
verue (via Naim Street Mall at Bintulu Paragon) to nost
the lively celebaations, whach saw Sarawak's Premier
maxing a stop 1o appreciate ocal businesses, engage the

community and expenence the urbanization of Bintulu at

73
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CORPORATE EVENTS (CONTINUED)

NAIM Occupational, Safety and Health Campaign

As one cf the key pillar of its operatucons, NAIM Is committed :n inculcating excellent cu'ture and

practces, especially crganizing awareness events and continuous s«ill bulang

NaCOS Culture Launch

Drven towards delivenng the best 1o ow
cusiomer and retain the compelztive edge
aganst contemporanes, NAIM Bunched
NaCOS, short Tor Nutunng & Cullure of
Ctsessed Semvice. The nbative save
NnuUMerous campaigns and engagement to
INCUKCAle & stiong sense Oof cuslamer -ceninaty

ATy Tearn NAIM
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OP 3 DEVHLOPERS |

NAIM Recognized as Top 30 Developers in Sarawak

tin a sloned 25 year history, NAIM was acknowledged as amang

g Sarawak Dowelc Peis Awaid., The award resented Ly’ Saldwak s

Testament o the iongevity and trus
Sarawak’'s best with SHEDA's Too 3
Premuer s among the highlights of 2023
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Accing to an extensive list of \;..‘('c-\\ U pannership \M\‘ Hock Peng JV, was recognized for their

by Edusar Ro‘ur--. rces San. Bhd (Developers)

axceptonal work on the L ,-.-,,3,5;'.-’. C¢ l"—mo‘ Technolo Jv Sarawak & Tecr nc}!:’_mg, Parx project ceveloped
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT

A Note on Terminology: Naim Holdings Berhad is the ultimate holding
company for Naim Land Sdn Bhd, Naim Engineering Sdn. Bhd. and
other subsidiary companies, both direct and indirect. As the principles
and practices of good corporate governance apply not only to the
ultimate holding company but also to all of its subsidiaries, we have
chosen to forgo the use of the term “Company” in this statement
unless the context requires, and instead emphasise the use of the
term “Group”, which encompasses all companies operating under the
control of Naim Holdings Berhad.

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance (“CG”)
Overview Statement (“Statement”) to the shareholders and investors
with an overview on the application of CG practices of the Group

during the financial year 2023. The Corporate Governance Overview
Statement sets out the principal features of the Group corporate
governance.

This statementis prepared in accordance with Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad’'s (“Bursa Securities”) Main Market Listing Requirements
(“MMLR”) and it shall be read together with the Corporate Governance
Report (“CG Report”) of the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2023. The CG Report provides the details on how the
Company has applied each of the practices as set out in the Malaysian
Code of Corporate Governance 2021 (“MCCG”). The CG Report is
available on the Company’s website: http://www.naim.com.my as well
as via an announcement on the website of Bursa Malaysia.
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PRINCIPLE A:
BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

Board’s Roles and Responsibilities

The Board of Directors is committed in ensuring the highest standards of corporate governance are practiced
throughout the Group as a fundamental part in discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholders’
value and the performance of the Group. The Board believes that adopting and operating in accordance with high
standards of corporate governance is essential for sustainable long-term performance and value creation.

The Board, being responsible for the corporate governance practices of the Group, has established a governance
framework where specific powers of the Board are delegated to the Board Committees and the Management.

The Board, together with the Management, is committed to promoting good governance culture within the Group
which reinforces ethical, prudent and professional behavior.

There is a clear division of roles and responsibilities of the Board and Management. The Board is responsible for the
strategic objectives and policies of the Group in addition to the oversight and overall management of the Company.

The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director are held by different individuals with clear and distinct roles.
The division of duties and responsibilities ensures an appropriate balance of roles and responsibilities at the Board
level. The Chairman conducts meetings of the Board and shareholders and ensures they are properly briefed at the
respective meetings.

The Managing Director, supported by a team of management staff, are responsible for the day-to-day running of
the business operations of the Group. Management performance is monitored on a quarterly basis by the Board.
The Board conducts quarterly reviews of the performance targets set by the Board against the actual performance
achieved to-date and at the same time receives and deliberates on the appropriate action plans to manage the
performance of the Group.

The following are the main roles and responsibilities of the Board towards meeting the objectives of the Group:

* Reviews, adopts and monitors the implementation of the Group’s strategic plans.

* Reviews and deliberates on the Management’s proposals, as well as challenges the Management’s views.

» Provides guidance and comment on the market, business and operational initiatives.

» Ensures that the necessary resources are available to achieve the strategic aims and objectives of the Group.

» Together with the Senior Management, promotes good corporate governance culture within the Group reinforcing
ethical, prudent and professional behaviour.

* Reviews the principal risks and ensures the implementation of appropriate internal control measures to achieve
an appropriate balance between risks incurred and returns to stakeholders.

All the Directors act with reasonable care, skill and diligence. They maintain a sound understanding of the business
and keep abreast of relevant developments to ensure that they are able to discharge their duties and responsibilities
effectively.

The Board Committees are established to assist the Board in executing its duties, allow detailed consideration
of complex issues, and ensure diversity of opinions, suggestions and recommendations. Each Board Committee
comprises members of the Board of Directors, and is mandated to carry out specified functions, programmes or
projects assigned by the Board. Each Committee is given a written charter with specific roles and responsibilities,
composition, structure, membership requirements, and the manner in which the Committee is to operate.

The Committees are to ensure effective Board processes, structures and roles. Annual assessments of the
performance of the Board, Board Committee and Board of Directors are carried out by the Nominating Committee.
All matters determined by the Committees are promptly reported to the Board through their respective Chairpersons
as opinions and/or recommendations for the Board’'s endorsement and/or decision.

Membership of each Committee shall be determined by the Board, acting on the recommendation of the Nominating
Committee. It is the view of the Board that the size of each Committee and the blend of skills and experience of
its members are sufficient to enable the Committee to discharge its responsibilities in accordance with the charter.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Members of each Committee are drawn from the Board, based on their respective skills, responsibilities and areas
of expertise.
The Nominating Committee conducts a yearly review of the Board Committees. The Chairman of each Committee

develops the agenda for each meeting and determines its frequency. The summary of committee membership is as
follows:

Name of Audit Nominating Remuneration Risk Anti-Bribery & Sustainability
Director Committee Committee Committee Management Corruption Committee
Committee Compliance
Committee

Datuk Amar \ J
Abdul Hamed (Chairman)
Bin Haji Sepawi

Datuk Hasmi v
Bin Hasnan

X y

Datuk Ahmad V (Chairman) (Chairman)

Bin Abu Bakar

Datin Mary 2l ~
Sa’diah v v (Chairman)

Binti Zainuddin

\/

, l
Chin Chee (Chairman)

Kong
J v

Tan Chuan Dyi (Chairman)

Sulaihah Binti v v v v
Maimunni

Total No. of
members 3 3 3 3 3 3

The Board Charter of the Company documents the governance and structure of the Board, authority, major
responsibilities and Terms of References for the Board and Board Committees. The Board Charter can be viewed at
the Company’s website www.naim.com.my. The website is updated periodically to ensure that it reflects the Group’s
current corporate governance information.

Board Meetings
The Board meets at least five (5) times annually, with additional meetings being convened as and when necessary.

During the financial year 2023, the Board met five (5) times. All Directors have complied with the minimum fifty per
centum (50%) attendance as required under Paragraph 15.05 (3)(c) of the MMLR as follows:

Current Directors Scheduled meetings
Attendance %

Datuk Amar Abdul Hamed Bin Haji Sepawi
Non-executive Chairman 5/5 100

Datuk Hasmi Bin Hasnan
Managing Director 5/5 100

Datin Mary Sa’diah Binti Zainuddin
Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100

Mr. Chin Chee Kong
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100
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Current Directors

Scheduled meetings

Attendance %

Mr. Tan Chuan Dyi

Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100
Cik Sulaihah Binti Maimunni

Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100
Datuk Ahmad Bin Abu Bakar

Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5 100
Mr. Beh Boon Ewe (resigned on 3 June 2023) 3/3 100

Executive Director

The Board meets at least once every quarter for the purpose of reviewing the Group’s past quarterly financial
performance against its annual operating plan, budget, future strategy and business plans. On top of the quarterly
meetings, the Board holds an additional meeting to approve the annual audited financial statements. These
statutory board meetings are scheduled before the end of the preceding financial year, to allow Directors to plan
ahead and block meeting dates in advance in their calendar.

All Directors have full, free and unrestricted access to the Senior Management, Accountants, Internal and External

Auditors and the Company Secretary.

Board Composition

The number of Directors shall be determined by the Board within the limits as prescribed in the Constitution of
the Company of not more than fifteen (15), taking into consideration the size and breadth of the business and the

need for Board diversity.

The current Board’s composition is as follows:-

As at 31 December 2023

Catego

gory No. of Directors %
Executive Director 1 14
Non-Executive director 2 29
Independant Non-Executive Director 4 57
Total 7 100

- -

Board composition based on category in 2023
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As at 31 December 2023, the Board had seven (7) Board Members of which 14% were Executive Directors, 29% Non-Executive
Directors and the balance of 57% were Independent Non-Executive Directors.

During the financial year 2023, the Executive Director, Mr. Beh Boon Ewe resigned effective from 3 June 2023.

During the year under review, the composition of the Board complied with the requirements of Practice 5.2 of the
MCCG whereby at least half of the Board comprises Independent Directors. In addition thereto, the Company also
complied with Paragraph 15.02 which requires at least two (2) directors or 1/3 of the Board to be Independent
Directors and one (1) woman director.

The members of the Board comprise persons of integrity and calibre from a diverse group of individuals with
broad experiences and accomplishments in audit, banking, finance, property, construction, project management,
engineering, oil and gas, timber, plantation and energy. The Directors’ profiles are set out on pages 20 to 27 of the
Annual Report 2023.

All members of the Board have demonstrated their ability to exercise sound business judgment. The Non-Executive
Directors do not participate in the routine operations and they bring unbiased guidance to the Group. They
constructively challenge and at the same time, contribute to the development of strategies. Being independent
of management and free of any business or other relationship, they are therefore able to promote arm’s length
oversight and at the same time, bring independent thinking, views and judgments to bear on decision-making. The
Board monitors the independence of each Director on a half-yearly basis, in respect of their interests disclosed
by them. The segregation of duties between Executive and Non-Executive Directors is to ensure an appropriate
balance of role and accountability at the Board level.

Tenure of Independent Director

The Board may seek shareholders’ approval for retaining a director who has served in the capacity for more than
nine (9) years as an Independent Non-Executive Director. The Nominating Committee/Board must conduct a rigorous
review to determine whether the Director’s independence has been impaired, taking into account the need for
progressive refreshing of the Board.

Datin Mary Sa’diah binti Zainuddin was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on 27 February 2013.
The Nominating Committee has assessed the independence of Datin Mary Sa’diah and she has met the criteria as
an Independent Director pursuant to MMLR. Although having served for a cumulative term of more than nine (9)
years, she remained professionally independent and actively participated in deliberation and exercised independent
judgement at Board and Board Committee Meetings without being affected by influences that compromised her
objectivity. She also provides valuable advice on oil and gas industry matters, and her wide knowledge will continue
to add credence to the Company and will not have any adverse effect on her independence as an Independent Non-
Executive Director.

Further, her genuine commitment to serving in the best interest of the Company, coupled with her high intellect and
integrity, puts her in the right position as an Independent Non-Executive Director. She has no conflict of interest
or undue influence from interested parties. Datin Mary Sa’diah is able to challenge ideas and can provide strong
independent leadership to the Company. She attended all scheduled Board meetings, Nominating Committee
meetings, Risk Management Committee meetings and Annual General Meeting without fail during the year under
review.
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Board Diversity

The Board acknowledges the importance of diversity in the Board, including gender, age, ethnicity, experience and
skills. Diversity in the Board composition facilitates optimal decision-making by harnessing different insights and
perspectives. The current board composition in terms of experience, skills, ethnic, gender and age is as follows:-

Experience and Skills Ethnic |Gender| Age
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Datuk Amar Abdul Hamed Bin Haji Sepawi NIvIvIv]Y N 0 N .
Datuk Hasmi Bin Hasnan NARRE N \ N N
Datin Mary Sa’diah Binti Zainuddin N N N \
Chin Chee Kong N N N A N
Tan Chuan Dyi N N N N

Cik Sulaihah Binti Maimunni v ol \/ \/ \
Datuk Ahmad Bin Abu Bakar V[V YV VY v

During the year under review, the Board comprised 71% Bumiputra and 29% Non-Bumiputra. The Board believes
that diversity leads to the consideration of all facets of an issue and consequently, better decisions and performance.

At the end of the year, the Board comprised five (5) male directors, representing 71% of the Board, and two (2) female
directors, representing 29% of the Board.

At the end of the year, the Senior Management team comprised five (5) male senior management staff, representing
45% and six (6) female senior management staff, representing 55% of the team.

Board composition based on Senior Management
ethnicity in 2023 gender in 2023 composition based on gender
in 2023

Board composition based on
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Retirement of Directors

All Directors, including the Managing Director, shall retire by rotation once every three years in accordance with
Article 85 of the Constitution of the Company. The Directors to retire shall be those longest in service since their last
appointment. Retiring Directors may offer themselves for re-election to the Board at the Annual General Meeting.

In addition, any newly appointed Director will submit himself/herself for retirement and re election at the Annual
General Meeting immediately following his/her appointment pursuant to Article 92 of the Constitution of the Company.
Thereafter he/she shall be subject to the one-third rotation retirement rule.

The Nominating Committee is entrusted to review the retirement of Directors.
Directors’ Training

During the year under review, Board members have attended various training programmes conferences, forums and
workshops on issues relevant to the Group. The training programmes, conferences and forums attended by the
Directors for the financial year ended 31 December 2023 were as follows:-

* Assessment of the Board, Board Committees and Individual Directors

* Audit Committee Conference 2023

» Conflict of Interest (“COI") Obligations of Directors, Key Officers, Nominating & Audit Committees

* ICDM Board NRC Dialogue & Networking: How Much Do Board Members Get Paid? Key Insights to the Malaysian
Board & Senior Management Remuneration Practices

* Mandatory Accreditation Programme Part 1| LEADING FOR IMPACT (“LIP”) Building high-impact boards for
sustainable growth

*  MIA Webinar Series: The ESG Agenda - An option or a must-have for Boards of listed issuers?

* Anti-Money Laundering/Counter Financing of Terrorism (“AML/CFT”)

» Climate Risk Management and Scenario Analysis Training

» Cybersecurity Briefing

* KPMG Tax And Business Summit

+ KPMG 2023 Board and Audit Committee Priorities

» Driving Sustainable Success: Sustainability for Senior Executives - A Board-of-Directors Engagement Session

+ ESG, Climate and Trust: The Board’s Role

* A Net Zero Remit for Finance Functions

* MFRS Update 2023

*  KPMG Annual Budget Webinar

» Integration of Corporate Social Due Diligence Directive

The Directors will continue to attend relevant seminars and trainings from time to time as they consider necessary to
equip themselves so that they are able to discharge their duties effectively.



ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Nominating Committee

The Nominating Committee comprises exclusively Non-Executive Directors, of whom a majority is independent. The
Nominating Committee is chaired by a Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director.

The Nominating Committee met twice during the financial year under review.

The activities undertaken by the Nominating Committee for the financial year ended 31 December 2023 were as
follows:

a. Assessed and evaluated the performance and effectiveness of the Board, Board Committees, self and peer
assessment.

b.  Assessed the effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees as a whole, on areas such as Board composition,
structure, the required mix of skills, experience and other qualities

C. Reviewed the Directors retiring by rotation pursuant to the Fit and Proper Policy adopted by the Company to be
put forward for re-election at the Company’s Annual General Meeting.

d. Reviewed the performance and effectiveness of the Audit Committee and its members. The Nominating
Committee was of the opinion that the Audit Committee and its members have carried out their duties in
accordance with their Terms of Reference.

e. Reviewed the succession planning of the key positions in the Company.

Succession Planning

Succession planning is a process of identifying and developing individuals with the potential to fill up the key business
leadership positions in the Group. Business continuity relies on succession planning.

The succession for various key positions has been planned and lined up in the Group to ensure that suitably qualified
talents are groomed so that they are able to assume the roles when the current generation of key staff retire or resign.
The Group has put in place a structured succession planning process for key senior management positions.

In the event that there is no suitable candidate with the “right fit” available from the existing pool, an executive search
may be launched to identify an appropriate candidate from an external source.

Board Effectiveness

The Board effectiveness evaluation questionnaires comprised the Board, Board Committee, Self and Peer Assessment
were issued to Board/Committee members in February 2023. The results indicated that the performance of the
Board, the Board Committee and individual Directors during the assessment period was satisfactory and they had
been effective in the overall discharge of their functions and responsibilities.

Commitment to Integrity
Code of Conduct and Business Ethics

In order to promote and maintain a high ethical standard, the Board has adopted a Code of Conduct and Business
Ethics, a standard for acceptable behaviour to all stakeholders in the Group. The Code of Conduct and Ethics
covers, amongst others, areas of integrity, core value and culture, accountability, conflicts of interest, confidentiality,
anti-corruption and bribery, and insider trading.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group has also established its Whistleblowing Policy with the objective of providing a mechanism for employees
and members of the public to report any improper conduct such as suspected wrongdoing, misconduct relating to
fraud, corrupt practices and abuse of power for management action. Investigation into whistleblowing cases will
be conducted by the Head of Internal Audit and/or the Compliance Officer and the outcome of the investigation is
reported to the Audit Committee.
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Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy

In compliance with Section 17A of the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission Act (Amendment) 2018 enforced on 1
June 2020, and Paragraph 15.29 of the Bursa Securities MMLR, the Board has adopted an Anti-Bribery & Corruption
Policy (“ABC Policy”) on 31 May 2020 and an Anti-Bribery and Corruption Compliance Committee (“ABC Compliance
Committee”) was established on 25 June 2020. The ABC Policy provides guidance to all employees and associates
of Naim Group relating to acts of bribery and corruption.

The Code of Conduct and Business Ethics, Whistleblowing Policy and Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy are available
at the Company’s website at www.naim.com.my.

Disclosure of Interests in Contracts/Conflict of Interest

Section 221 of the Companies Act 2016 requires every Director of the Company, who is in any way, whether directly
or indirectly, interested in a contract or proposed contract with any entity of the Group, shall, as soon as practicable
after the relevant facts have come to his knowledge, declare the nature of his interest at a meeting of the Directors
of the Company.

The Directors update the list of companies in which they have interests on a half-yearly basis, and accordingly, the list
of their respective interests is tabled to the Board for notation. In the same document, the Directors also confirm the
number of directorships he/she holds in listed entities. None of the Directors holds more than five (5) directorships
in listed entities.

In addition to the half-yearly confirmation/disclosure, members of the Board are also required to declare or disclose
their interest in any transaction involving the Naim Group as and when a potential conflict of interest arises. Where
the Directors are deemed as interested and/or having a conflict of interest in a transaction, they would excuse
themselves from the discussion and decision and leave the meeting room.

PRINCIPLE B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Audit Committee

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control, the overall purpose of which is to protect shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets. The Board is assisted by the Audit Committee in monitoring the Group’s internal
control system, internal audit process, related party transactions, conflict of interest situations, accounting policies,
financial reporting, and overseeing the performance, independence and objectivity of the external auditors and the
quality of the audit. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is to inform the Directors during Board meetings of any
salient matter reviewed by the Audit Committee arising from audit findings that may require the Board’s attention or
decision.

The Audit Committee had on 19 April 2024, assessed the suitability, objectivity, independence and re-appointment of
the external auditor, Messrs KPMG. In November 2023, Messrs KPMG had submitted its Transparency Report
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to members of the Audit Committee. The Transparency Report contained
comprehensive information on KPMG’s Audit Quality Framework, legal, governance and leadership structure, culture,
values, and digital technology.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the adequacy of their experience and resources, their audit engagements and
also the provision of non-audit services to the Group.The Audit Committee was satisfied that Messrs KPMG had met
the relevant criteria prescribed under Paragraph 15.21 MMLR and it had recommended the re-appointment of Messrs
KPMG for the ensuing financial year.

Having considered the outcome of the assessment of the external auditors by the Audit Committee, the Board
approved the recommendation for shareholders’ approval to be sought at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
on the re-appointment of Messrs KPMG.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the related party transactions to ensure that the transactions were fair, reasonable,
not detrimental to the minority shareholders and were in the best interests of the Group.
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The performance of the Audit Committee and each of its members were reviewed annually by the Nominating Committee
pursuant to Paragraph 15.20 MMLR and recommendations were submitted to the Board for its endorsement.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Tan Chuan Dyi, an Independent Non-Executive Director and he is not
the Chairman of the Board. All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate.

The roles of the Audit Committee are explained in pages 93 to 95 of this Annual Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of risk management and internal control. The Group has a system
of risk management and internal control to identify the risks the Group faces in its businesses and put controls in
place to mitigate the risks. The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against the
occurrence of any material misstatement or loss.

The Group has established policies and framework for the oversight and management of material business risks.
The Group Risk Management Department consolidates the Corporate Risk Profile from the respective business units/
divisions/ departments risk registers outlining the risks, controls and risk mitigation plans that the Management has
taken in mitigating the risks for submission to the Risk Management Committee on a quarterly basis. The identified
high-risk areas, including risk mitigation plans, are reported and deliberated at Board Meetings.

Further information on the Group’s risk management and internal framework is made available on the Statement of
Risk Management and Internal Control on pages 96 to 97 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPLE C: INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP
WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Communication with Stakeholders

The dissemination of timely and accurate information is important for shareholders and investors to enable them to
make informed investment decisions. The Company ensures that its communication with shareholders and other
stakeholders is timely and transparent. The Company aims to engage with shareholders transparently and regularly
in order to build a mutual understanding of respective objectives. The other communication modes include Annual
Reports, General Meetings, Circulars, quarterly results announcements, and corporate disclosures via Bursa LINK,
press releases, information on the Company’s website, and other investor relation activities.

The Company also maintains a website at www.naim.com.my that allows shareholders and investors to gain access
to information about the Group as well as to direct their queries and feedback to the Board of Directors/or Management
through the email, investorrelations@naim.com.my posted at the aforesaid website.

The Group abides by the following main principles in its investor relations:-

« Thoughtful analysis of our market value relative to estimates of our intrinsic value, that is, the present value of our
Group based on a series of future expected net cash flows.

« Ensuring that all information disclosed to our investors is consistent with our strategies, plans and actual
performance.

» Providing transparency on our operations and performance.

» Understanding our investor base and their requirements.
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Conduct of General Meetings

The Annual/Extraordinary General Meetings have been the main forum for dialogue with shareholders. Ample
opportunities are given to shareholders to raise questions and/or seek clarification on the Group’s business and
performance.

The Company’s 21st Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) was held at Sapphire On The Park, Function Hall, 3rd Floor,
Jalan Lintang Selatan, Batu Lintang, 93200 Kuching, Sarawak on 25 May 2023.

All the resolutions put forward at the AGM were voted by poll in accordance with paragraph 8.29A of the MMLR.

Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn. Bhd. was appointed as the Poll Administrator and Scrutineer Solutions
Sdn. Bhd. as Independent Scrutineer to oversee the polling processes at the AGM. All ordinary resolutions were
passed by a majority of votes by members present either in person or by proxy.

The external auditors, Messrs KPMG PLT were invited to attend the AGM pursuant to Section 285 of the Companies
Act 2016, to respond to any question which might be raised in respect of the audit of the financial statements.

If there are any questions raised by shareholders prior to the AGM, the Company shall provide the responses and
share with shareholders during the meeting and at the same time, the Managing Director shall address any live
questions posed by shareholders.

Compliance Statement

The Board has deliberated, reviewed and approved this Statement and is satisfied that the Company has substantially
complied and applied the 3 key principles of the MCCG for the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

Details of how the Company has applied the MCCG Principles and complied with the Practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report 2021 (“CG Report”).

Statement of Directors’ Responsibility in preparing the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are required by the Companies Act 2016 and the MMLR of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad to prepare financial statements in accordance with approved accounting standards so as to give a true and

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at the end of the financial year, and of the results and
cash flow of the Company and the Group for the financial year.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company and its subsidiaries maintain proper accounting records
that disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial positions of the Company and of the Group in compliance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 and approved accounting standards in Malaysia. In preparing the financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors have applied appropriate and relevant
accounting policies consistently and in accordance with applicable accounting standards and made judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and fair.

The financial statements are prepared on a going-concern basis and the Directors have ensured that proper
accounting records are kept, which enable the preparation of the financial statements with reasonable accuracy.
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The Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group’s business operations and performance

The Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group’s business operations and performance are disclosed from
pages 42 to 46.

Additional Compliance Information
1. Utilisation of Proceeds from the Disposal of Land

The Company announced to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 25 August 2022 that the Board decided to
extend the timeframe for utilising the remaining unutilised proceeds from the disposal of land by the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, Petrochemical Hub Sdn. Bhd. (“Disposal”) allocated for capital investment for an
additional 24 months (i.e., up to 20 October 2024).

The additional timeframe of 24 months for utilising the proceeds for the capital investment of RM 15 million
enables the Company to carry out detailed technical and economic feasibility studies on the proposed new
capital investment.

As at 31 March 2024, the status of the utilisation of proceeds raised from the Disposal of RM 340 million was as
follows:-

Details of utilisation Approved Actual Remaining Approved Extended
Utilisation Utilisation unutilised timeframe for timeframe for
(RM million) (RM million) (RM million) utilisation utilisation
Capital investment 15 - 15 Within 24 months ~ Within 48 months
from completion  from completion
Repayment of bank 117 117 - Within 12 months -
borrowings from completion
Dividends to shareholders 90 90 - Within 12 months -
from completion
Working capital for property 75 75 - Within 18 months -
development activities from completion
Estimated expenses in 43 43 - Within 9 months -
relation to the Disposal from completion

Total 340 325 15
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2. Audit and Non-Audit Fees

The amount of audit and non-audit fees paid/payable to the external auditors by the Company and the Group in
the financial year ended 31 December 2023 were as follows:

ltem Nature of services rendered Company Group
RM'000 RM’000

A. Audit Fees 82 397
B. Non-Audit Fees 37 246
Total 119 643

The non-audit fees comprised the following:

Item Nature of services rendered RM’000
a. Tax fee 220
b. Other advisory fees 26

Total 246

3. Material Contracts involving interests of Directors/Chief Executive/Major Shareholders
There were no material contracts entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries involving Directors and Chief
Executive who is not a Director or Major Shareholders still subsisting at the end of the financial year ended 31
December 2023.

4. Employee Share Scheme - Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”)

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, no grants were issued.

No grants were issued since the LTIP was approved for implementation in May 2015.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Members
The Audit Committee comprises the following:-

Mr. Tan Chuan Dyi — Chairman
Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Ahmad Bin Abu Bakar — Member
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chin Chee Kong — Member
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

The Audit Committee is the Board’s primary tool for
exercising guardianship of shareholder value and imposing
the highest standards of ethical behaviour. It is responsible
for assessing risks, overseeing financial reporting, evaluating
internal and external audit processes and reviewing conflict
of interest situations and related party transactions.

The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:-

Category No. of Directors  Percentage
Independent

Non-Executive 2 66.67%
Director

Non-Independent

Non-Executive 1 33.33
Director

Total 3 100%

Two (2) of its members, Mr. Chin Chee Kong and Datuk
Ahmad Bin Abu Bakar are members of the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is not the Chairman
of the Board.

ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

The Audit Committee met five (5) times during the year
2023 and the details of attendance are as follows:-

Audit Committee No. of Attendance

Members Meetings (%)
Attended

Mr. Tan Chuan Dyi 5/5 100

Datuk Ahmad

Bin Abu Bakar 5/5 100

Mr. Chin Chee Kong 5/5 100

Note: The Audit Committee held independent sessions with the
external auditors during two (2) of the five (5) meetings.

External auditors, internal auditors and relevant
management staff were invited, when necessary to
attend the Audit Committee meetings to, inter alia,
discuss the results of the Group, the internal and external
audit findings and financial reporting issues.

The members of the Audit Committee also met twice
during the year in independent sessions with the external
auditors without the presence of management.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee can also
be found on the corporate website at www.naim.com.my.

1. SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES
During the year, the Audit Committee carried out the
following activities in the discharge of its functions
and duties:-

1.1 Financial Reporting

* Reviewed quarterly interim reports and
unaudited year end financial statements
before recommending the same for approval
by the Board of Directors, focusing on:-

i. changes in or implementation of new or
revised major accounting standards,

ii.  significantmattersincluding financial reporting
issues and how they were addressed,

iii. compliance with accounting standards
and other legal requirements.

* Reviewed and recommended for Board’s
approval the annual audited financial
statements.

* Reviewed the internal control aspects of the
Statementon Risk Managementand Internal
Control and made recommendations
thereon to the Risk Management Committee
for its consideration.
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1.2

1.3

1.4

Related Party Transactions

* Reviewed the related party transactions that
arose within the Group, on a quarterly basis,
to ensure that the transactions were fair and
reasonable, not detrimental to the minority
shareholders and were in the best interest of
the Group.

Internal Audit

* Reviewed and approved the annual audit plan
proposed by the Internal Audit Department
(“IAD”) to ensure the adequacy of scope and
coverage over the activities of the Group.

* Reviewed the internal audit reports issued by
the IAD on the effectiveness and adequacy of
governance, risk management, operational and
compliance processes.

* Reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness
of agreed corrective actions taken by the
Management on audit issues raised.

* Reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy
of audit process, resource requirements and
assessed the performance of the internal audit
team.

* Reviewed and endorsed the changes to the
Internal Audit Policies.

External Audit

* Reviewed and deliberated on the external
auditors’ presentation of their terms, areas
of responsibilities, audit plan and approach,
areas of audit emphasis, financial reporting
changes and requirements, proposed fee,
key accounting and audit judgements and
unadjusted differences identified during the
audit.

* Reviewed and deliberated on the External
auditors’ reports in relation to the statutory audit,
major audit findings and the Management’s
responses arising from the audit.

* Reviewed and assessed the independence
and suitability of external auditor pursuant to
Paragraph 15.21 Bursa Listing Requirements
in the following areas:-

i. Quality of services provided;

ii. Sufficiency of resources;

iii. Communication and interaction; and

iv. Independence, objectivity and scepticsm.
 Ensured that the audit engagement and

concurring review partners are rotated in

accordance with the Malaysia Institute of

Accountant’s By-Laws.

* Considered and recommended to the Board
for approval, the re-appointment of External
Auditors, as well as their remuneration.

* Met with external auditors twice, in the absence
of management.

* Discussed and considered the significant
accounting adjustments and auditing issues
arising from the interim audit as well as the
final audit with the External Auditors.

2. INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group is served by an in-house IAD, whose
primary function is to assist the Audit Committee in
discharging its duties and responsibilities. The |IAD
reports directly to the Audit Committee on its activities
based on the approved annual Internal Audit Plan. The
approved plan is designed to cover high risks areas
and entities across all levels of operations within the
Group, other than associates and joint ventures. The
Internal Audit role and responsibilities are defined in
the Internal Audit Charter with the mission to provide
independent, objective assurance and consulting
services to add value and improve the organisation’s
operations.

Their role is to provide the Audit Committee with
independent and objective reports on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the system of internal controls
and procedures in the operating units within the
Group and the extent of compliance with the Group’s
established policies, procedures and guidelines, and
also compliance with applicable laws, regulations,
directives and other enforced compliance
requirements.

The position of Head of Internal Audit is currently
vacant and the Group is actively looking for a
replacement. During the course of the year, the IAD
has an average staff force of three (3). The internal
audit staff comprise those who possess tertiary
qualifications in the field of Accounting, Construction
Management, Finance and Business Administration.

2.1 Authority

Toaccomplish its primary objectives in examining
and evaluating whether the Group’s governance,
risk and internal control processes are adequate
and functioning properly, the internal auditors
are authorised to have full, free and unrestricted
access to Group’s operations, activities,
information, functions, records, properties and
personnel relevant to the performance of internal
audit at any time.
2.2 Independence
The IAD is independent of the activities
audited and performs with impartiality and due
professional care. The IAD reports directly
to the Audit Committee. In addition, the Audit
Committee assesses the performance of the
Head of Internal Audit.
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2.3 Duties and Responsibilities (continued)

Each year the IAD develops an audit plan detailing engagements to be conducted during the year and

submits the same to the Audit Committee for approval before carrying out the planned assignments. Reports

on the internal audit activities are submitted to the Audit Committee every quarter.

Reports submitted include the status and results of the annual audit plan on the activities being reviewed.

Cases of fraud which demand urgent attention, shall be reported to the Audit Committee and the Managing

Director immediately upon discovery by the audit staff.

2.4 Internal Audit Functions and Activities

The IAD has carried out its activities based on planned audits and special reviews during the year. During

the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the internal audit activities carried out included, inter alia, the

following:

a. Evaluated the system of internal controls and key operating processes based on the approved annual
plan.

b. Evaluated the efficiency of processes, functions and current practices and provided suitable recommendations
to relevant risk/ process owners.

c. Provided assurance on compliance with statutory requirements, laws, Group policies and guidelines.

d. Recommended appropriate controls to overcome deficiencies and enhance operations.

e. Carried out investigations and special reviews a the request of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors
and management.

Follow-up audits were also conducted and the status of implementation on the agreed corrective actions

were highlighted to the Audit Committee. Such regular monitoring is essential to ensure the integrity and

effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control.

A total cost of RM 398,966.57 was incurred by the IAD in respect of the financial year under review.

3. TRAINING

The internal auditors attended the following external and internally facilitated sessions as follows:-
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Date

Description of Training

7 February 2023  Cashflow & Financial Modelling Workshop

27 February 2023 NLP Techniques for Effective Communication & Inter-Personal Excellence

4 September 2023 East Malaysia Conference 2023 Theme: Unlocking Success: Empowering Internal Auditors

for Tomorrow’s Challenges
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

Introduction

This Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control by
the Board of Directors is made pursuant to Bursa Malaysia
Listing Requirements with regard to the Group’s compliance
with the principles and best practices for internal control as
provided in the Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance
(MCCG 2021).

The Board of NAIM believes in good corporate governance
and managing the affairs of the Group in accordance with
the MCCG 2021. In addition, the Board believes that it is
very much the voluntary good behaviour and credibility of
the Board which will create a good governance culture for
the entire organisation and its business partners.

Responsibility

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for maintaining
a sound system of risk management and internal control to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets
as well as reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the
system. In the discharge of these responsibilities, the Board
has put in place a process at all levels of the organisation
to provide reasonable assurance that the Group’s business
objectives will be achieved. The system covers inter alia
financial, operational and compliance system controls, as
well as risk management. Due to the limitations that are
inherent in any system of risk management and internal
control, it is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the
risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives. Accordingly,
it can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Framework

The Board acknowledges that the Group’s activities
involve a certain degree of risks and is committed
to ensuring that it has an effective risk management
framework that allows the Group to identify, evaluate and
manage risks that affect the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.

The Risk Management Committee is chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director and comprises
mostly Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
Committee is supported by a Risk Management Unit
(RMU) to assist in the coordination of the Group’s risk
management activities as well as the establishment and
communication of the framework, policies, processes
and reporting requirements to the business units; and to
coordinate Group-wide review of risks and risk profiles
and to promote risk awareness within the Group.

The Group’s approach to risk management is continuously
refined to ensure its relevance and adaptability to the
current environment and business operations. The Group
has adopted the risk management framework that is
aligned with the principles and guidelines of ISO 31000.

Risk Management Process
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Risk Management Process

The management of each business unit in the Group
is responsible for the implementation of the approved
framework to manage all the possible risks that can affect
the achievement of the Group’s objectives by ensuring that
effective controls are in place and appropriate risk mitigation
plans are carried out. The RMU facilitates the risk assessment
process through dialogues with the key managers from
business units, operations and support services units. The
result from the risk assessment is reported and deliberated
during the Risk Management Committee meeting held on
a quarterly basis. The Risk Management Committee, after
reviewing the same, escalates them to the Board.

Key Processes of Internal Control

The key processes of Internal Control include the
following and will be revised regularly and updated when
necessary:-

* An organisational structure that lays down clear lines
of responsibility and reporting.

» Clear documented and formalised standard operating
policies and procedures to ensure compliance with
internal controls, relevant laws and regulations, which
are subject to regular reviews and improvements,
have been communicated to all levels and are easily
accessible on the Company’s intranet platform.
In particular, the NAIM Group Procedures (NGP)
and NAIM Group Authority Limit (NGAL) set out
the operating control procedures pertaining to
finance, accounting, credit control, human resources,
procurements and inventory. The control procedures,
inter alia, include setting limits for approving expenditure
and procurements. These procedures and NGAL are
updated when necessary.

* Real-time budgetary control, where actual performance
is regularly monitored against budgets.

*+ The Group uses various line-of-business systems
and applications to improve operational efficiency and
transparency.



« The NAIM Employee Handbook, which sets out
general employment terms and the NAIM Group’s
corporate code of ethics.

« A management system comprises Quality,
Environmental and Occupational, Health & Safety
Management System requiring the management
and staff of NAIM Group to adhere to a set of well-
established standard operating procedures covering
all major critical processes to enable the optimal
achievement of their business objectives. Surveillance
audits are conducted yearly to ensure compliance with
the system.

+ Establishment of Standard Operating Procedures,
guidelines and other health-related management and
provision of PPEs to combat contagious diseases such
as COVID-19. This is to ensure Business Continuity,
meeting the needs of ISO45001 requirements relating
to employee health protection and those of local,
statutory and legal requirements like Sarawak Disaster
Management Committee (SMDC) and Department of
Occupational Safety & Health (DOSH).

* A Whistleblowing Policy provides a mechanism for all
levels of employees and stakeholders of the Group,
acting in good faith, to disclose any misconduct and to
provide protection for employees and members of the
public who report such allegations. Such misconducts
include but are not limited to fraud, conflict of interest,
abuse of power, etc.

* In conjunction with the introduction of corporate liability
provision under Section 17A of the MACC Act 2009,
the Group has in place an Anti-Bribery & Corruption
Policy and has adopted a zero-tolerance policy against
all forms of bribery and corruption. The policy serves
as formal guidance and reference to those working for
and/or associated with the Group to deal with, manage
and handle any bribery and corrupt gratification issues.

« Additionally, the NAIM Group’s Code of Conduct and
Business Ethics sets the standard for how we work
together with customers, suppliers, contractors and
others in the development and delivery of products and
services and how we protect the value of the Group.

« Employees performances are monitored and
appraised and employees are rewarded according to
the achievement of targets set.

» Learning and development programmes are identified
and scheduled for employees to acquire the necessary
knowledge and competency to meet their performance,
job expectation, generate new ideas and acquire the
latest updates on regulatory requirements.

The process of risk management and internal control of
the Group covers the holding company and its subsidiaries
only and does not extend to associates and joint ventures.

Internal Audit

The Group has established a formal structure for its
internal audit function that clearly defines the roles and
responsibilities of the persons involved in the internal
audit. As an integral part of the audit process, key
areas of importance pertaining to internal control, risk
assessment, risk mitigation and proper governance
processes are identified. Focusing its review and audit on
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these key areas, the internal audit provides independent
assurance on the efficiency and effectiveness of the
internal control system implemented by management.
The internal audit reports to the Audit Committee on
at least a quarterly basis, and more frequently where
appropriate. The Chairman of the Audit Committee in
turn presents summaries of the internal audit reports
(including management’s responses to audit findings
and recommendations) at Board meetings.

Assurance to the Board

The Board has received assurance form the Group
Managing Director and Group Chief Financial Officer
that the Group’s risk management and internal controls
are operating adequately and effectively, in all material
aspects, based on the risk management and internal
control system of the Group.

Review of the Statement by External Auditors

The external auditors have reviewed this Statement on
Risk Management and Internal Control pursuant to the
scope set out in Audit and Assurance Practice Guides
(“AAPG”) 3, Guidance for Auditors on Engagements to
Report on the Statement on Risk Management and

Internal Control included in the Annual Report issued
by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”) for
inclusion in the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023, and reported to the Board
that nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the statement intended to be included in
the annual report of the Group, in all material respects:-

a. Has not been prepared in accordance with the
disclosures required by paragraphs 41 and 42 of the
Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control:
Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers, or

b. Is factually inaccurate.

AAPG 3 does not require the external auditors to consider
whether the Directors’ Statement on Risk Management
and Internal Control covers all risks and controls, or to
form an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control system
including the assessment and opinion by the Board of
Directors and management thereon. The auditors are
also not required to consider whether the processes
described to deal with material internal control aspects
of any significant problems disclosed in the annual report
will, in fact, remedy the problems.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution
of the Board of Directors dated 27 February 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2023

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal activities

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding and the provision of management services to its
subsidiaries. There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Subsidiaries
The principal activities and other details of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Results

Group Company
RM’000 RM’000

Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company 35,034 5,096
Non-controlling interests 279 -
35,313 5,096

Dividend

No dividend was paid during the year and the Directors do not recommend any dividend to be paid for the year under
review.

Reserves and provisions

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year under review.
Directors of the Company

Directors who served during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Datuk Amar Abdul Hamed Bin Haji Sepawi*
Datuk Hasmi Bin Hasnan*

Datin Mary Sa’diah Binti Zainuddin

Datuk Ahmad Bin Abu Bakar

Chin Chee Kong

Tan Chuan Dyi

Sulaihah Binti Maimunni

Beh Boon Ewe (resigned on 03.06.2023)*

* These Directors are also directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company during the year.



Directors of the subsidiaries

The following is the list of directors of the subsidiaries (excluding those who are also directors of the Company as
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mentioned in the preceding page) in office during the year and up to the date of this report:

Datu Haji Halmi Bin Ikhwan

Dato’ Ir. Ha Tiing Tai

Dato’ Ubull A/L Din Om

Datu Abang Mohamad Shibli Bin Abg Mohamad Nailie
Datuk Haiji Abang Abdul Wahap Bin Haji Abang Julai
Tuan Haji Abang Mat Ali Bin Abang Masagus

Lingoh Anak Gara

Nona Zaharia Binti Fadzil

Allan Anak Micheal Rimong

Alexander Manyin

Lau Kiu Huat (alternate to Datu Haji Halmi Bin Ikhwan)
Yap Hon Kong

Kuintan Binti Sepawi

Zainol Rashid Bin Mustafa

Tan Yaw Thong

Emily Hii San San

Lim Khong Guan

Kon Ted Jee

Abdul Halim Bin Abd Jalal

Alexander Lim Kuok Hui

Shaharum Bin Ramli (appointed on 03.06.2023)
Muhd Syahiskandar Bin Sahmat (resigned on 25.10.2023)
Ho Chun Yi (resigned on 23.11.2023)

Datu Monaliza Binti Zaidel (resigned on 13.03.2024)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED)

Directors’ interests in shares

The interests and deemed interests of the Directors (including where applicable, the interests of their spouses
or children who themselves are not directors of the Company), in the shares of the Company and of its related
corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) during and at the end of the financial year as recorded in the

Register of Directors’ Shareholdings are as follows:

Direct interests

Datuk Amar Abdul Hamed Bin Haji Sepawi
- The Company

- Mawar Education Centre Sdn. Bhd.*
Datuk Hasmi Bin Hasnan

- The Company

Shareholdings in which
Datuk Amar Abdul Hamed Bin Haji Sepawi has
deemed interests

The Company

Desa limu Sdn. Bhd.

NAIM GAMUDA (NAGA) JV SDN. BHD.
Peranan Makmur Sdn. Bhd.

Simbol Warisan Sdn. Bhd.

BDA Naim Sdn. Bhd.

Mawar Education Centre Sdn. Bhd.*
Naim Engineering Construction (Fiji) Limited
Naim Quarry (Fiji) Limited

Naim Premix (Fiji) Limited

Lotus Paradigm Sdn. Bhd.

Shareholdings in which
Datuk Hasmi Bin Hasnan has deemed interests

The Company

Desa limu Sdn. Bhd.

NAIM GAMUDA (NAGA) JV SDN. BHD.
Peranan Makmur Sdn. Bhd.

Simbol Warisan Sdn. Bhd.

BDA Naim Sdn. Bhd.

Mawar Education Centre Sdn. Bhd.*
Naim Engineering Construction (Fiji) Limited
Naim Quarry (Fiji) Limited

Naim Premix (Fiji) Limited

Lotus Paradigm Sdn. Bhd.

At
1.1.2023/
date of
acquisition

32,553,427
699,999

55,730,768

73,507,433
8,000,000
7,000,000
7,000,000

7,500
400,000
800,000
999,999
999,999
999,999

70

135,259,244
8,000,000
7,000,000
7,000,000

7,500
400,000
800,000
999,999
999,999
999,999

70

* Being newly acquired subsidiary of the Group [see Note 36(i)].

Number of ordinary shares

Bought Sold

At
31.12.2023

32,553,427
699,999

55,730,768

73,507,433
8,000,000
7,000,000
7,000,000

7,500
400,000
800,000
999,999
999,999
999,999

70

135,259,244
8,000,000
7,000,000
7,000,000

7,500
400,000
800,000
999,999
999,999
999,999

70

Datuk Amar Abdul Hamed Bin Haji Sepawi and Datuk Hasmi Bin Hasnan, by virtue of their interests in the ordinary
shares of the Company, are deemed interested in the shares of the subsidiaries to the extent the Company has

an interest.

The other Directors holding office at 31 December 2023 did not have any interest in the shares of the Company
and of its related corporations during and at the end of the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED)

Directors’ interests in shares

The interests and deemed interests of the Directors (including where applicable, the interests of their spouses
or children who themselves are not directors of the Company), in the shares of the Company and of its related
corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) during and at the end of the financial year as recorded in the

Register of Directors’ Shareholdings are as follows:

Direct interests

Datuk Amar Abdul Hamed Bin Haji Sepawi
- The Company

- Mawar Education Centre Sdn. Bhd.*
Datuk Hasmi Bin Hasnan

- The Company

Shareholdings in which
Datuk Amar Abdul Hamed Bin Haji Sepawi has
deemed interests

The Company

Desa limu Sdn. Bhd.

NAIM GAMUDA (NAGA) JV SDN. BHD.
Peranan Makmur Sdn. Bhd.

Simbol Warisan Sdn. Bhd.

BDA Naim Sdn. Bhd.

Mawar Education Centre Sdn. Bhd.*
Naim Engineering Construction (Fiji) Limited
Naim Quarry (Fiji) Limited

Naim Premix (Fiji) Limited

Lotus Paradigm Sdn. Bhd.

Shareholdings in which
Datuk Hasmi Bin Hasnan has deemed interests

The Company

Desa limu Sdn. Bhd.

NAIM GAMUDA (NAGA) JV SDN. BHD.
Peranan Makmur Sdn. Bhd.

Simbol Warisan Sdn. Bhd.

BDA Naim Sdn. Bhd.

Mawar Education Centre Sdn. Bhd.*
Naim Engineering Construction (Fiji) Limited
Naim Quarry (Fiji) Limited

Naim Premix (Fiji) Limited
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32,553,427
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7,000,000
7,000,000

7,500
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800,000
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8,000,000
7,000,000
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* Being newly acquired subsidiary of the Group [see Note 36(i)].

Number of ordinary shares

Bought Sold

At
31.12.2023

32,553,427
699,999
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7,000,000
7,000,000
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Datuk Amar Abdul Hamed Bin Haji Sepawi and Datuk Hasmi Bin Hasnan, by virtue of their interests in the ordinary
shares of the Company, are deemed interested in the shares of the subsidiaries to the extent the Company has

an interest.

The other Directors holding office at 31 December 2023 did not have any interest in the shares of the Company
and of its related corporations during and at the end of the financial year.
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Directors’ benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received nor become entitled to receive
any benefit (other than those disclosed below and Note 27 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made
by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a
company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest.

The Directors’ benefits payable to or receivable by Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Company Group
RM’000 RM’000
Directors of the Company:

Fees 450 450
Short term employee benefits 3,291 3,493
Estimated monetary value of benefit-in-kind 56 59
Total Directors’ remuneration 3,797 4,002

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object of enabling Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

Issue of shares and debentures

There were neither changes in the issued and paid-up capital of the Company, nor issuances of debentures by the
Company during the financial year.

Options granted over unissued shares
No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year.
No shares have been granted during the current year pursuant to the Long Term Incentive Plan, a share scheme
which was approved by the shareholders of the Company in May 2015 for a period of 10 years but has not been
implemented and rolled out since then.
Indemnity and insurance costs for Officers and Auditors
a. Directors and officers
The Directors and officers of the Group and of the Company are covered by Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance (“DOL Insurance”) for the purpose of Section 289 of the Companies Act 2016. The total insured limit for
the DOL Insurance effected for the Directors and officers of the Group was RM50 million in aggregate.
The insurance premium for the DOL Insurance paid during the financial year amounted to RM57,000.
b. Auditors
Any indemnity given to or insurance effected for the auditors of the Company is to be made to the extent as

permitted under Section 289 of the Companies Act 2016. There is no amount of such indemnity given or insurance
effected for its auditors during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED)

Other statutory information

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable
steps to ascertain that:

i. all known bad debts have been written off and adequate provision made for doubtful debts, and

ii. any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business have been written down
to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

i. that would render the amount written off for bad debts, or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts, in the
Group and in the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, or

ii. that would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company misleading, or

iii. which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group
and of the Company misleading or inappropriate, or

iv. not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, that would render any amount stated in the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

i. any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year
and which secures the liabilities of any other person, or

ii. any contingent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial
year.

No contingent liability or other liability of any company in the Group has become enforceable, or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors,
will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when
they fall due.

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial performance of the Group and of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2023 have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and
unusual nature, nor has any such item, transaction or event occurred in the interval between the end of that financial
year and the date of this report.
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Auditors
The auditors, KPMG PLT, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

The auditors’ remuneration of the Group and the Company during the year in respect of audit services rendered are
RM380,000 and RM82,000 respectively (also see Note 24 to the financial statements).

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

Datuk Amar Abdul Hamed Bin Haji Sepawi

Datuk Hasmi Bin Hasnan

Kuching,

Date: 19 April 2024
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

___Group ___ Company ____

2023 2022 2023 2022
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 128,263 117,721 4,875 5,100
Investment in subsidiaries 4 - - 338,223 337,423
Investment in associates 5 487,334 440,582 177,119 172,358
Investment in joint ventures 6 2,107 2,027 - -
Inventories 7 165,448 172,242 - -
Investment properties 8 68,760 80,503 - -
Intangible asset 9 60 113 - -
Deferred tax assets 10 1,436 2,229 - -
Other investments 1 3,018 3,017 - -
Trade and other receivables 12 13,021 30,700 - -
Total non-current assets 869,447 849,134 520,217 514,881
Inventories 7 549,231 558,215 - -
Contract costs 13 5,972 4,730 - -
Contract assets 13 81,689 39,316 - -
Trade and other receivables 12 62,952 77,365 85,222 76,736
Deposits and prepayments 14 8,066 10,449 20 20
Current tax recoverable 996 1,334 47 71
Other financial assets 15 6,994 15,416 - 2,824
Cash and cash equivalents 16 220,868 247,758 22,581 29,797
936,768 954,583 107,870 109,448
Assets classified as held for sale 17 88 83 - -
Total current assets 936,856 954,666 107,870 109,448
Total assets 1,806,303 1,803,800 628,087 624,329

Equity
Share capital 18 454,802 454,802 454,802 454,802
Reserves 19 852,736 809,879 20,962 15,866
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,307,538 1,264,681 475,764 470,668
Non-controlling interests 4 16,877 21,950 - -

Total equity 1,324,415 1,286,631 475,764 470,668
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Group Company ____

2023 2022 2023 2022
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Liabilities
Loans and borrowings 20 66,682 87,620 32,702 38,797
Deferred tax liabilities 10 20,482 21,167 - -
Total non-current liabilities 87,164 108,787 32,702 38,797
Loans and borrowings 20 130,282 145,330 46,095 41,091
Trade and other payables 21 258,785 256,017 73,526 73,773
Contract liabilities 13 3,096 1,871 - -
Provisions 22 - 3,472 - -
Current tax payable 2,561 1,692 - -
Total current liabilities 394,724 408,382 119,621 114,864
Total liabilities 481,888 517,169 152,323 153,661
Total equity and liabilities 1,806,303 1,803,800 628,087 624,329

The notes on pages 116 to 180 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2023

___Group__ ____Company_
2023 2022 2023 2022
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Revenue 23 316,952 368,566 10,962 6,634
Cost of sales (281,328) (339,862) - -
Gross profit 35,624 28,704 10,962 6,634
Other operating income 6,112 2,911 5,019 268
Selling and promotional expenses (3,932) (3,946) - -
Administrative expenses (22,424) (23,687) (7,849) (7,395)
Other expenses (14,807) (12,199) - (18,000)
Net changes in impairment loss on financial
assets and contract assets (2,483) 2,319 - -
Results from operating activities 24 (1,910) (5,898) 8,132 (18,493)
Other non-operating expense 25 (205) (55) - -
Finance income 26 8,510 8,419 4,370 3,576
Finance costs 26 (11,113) (11,969) (7,406) (5,679)
Net finance costs (2,603) (3,550) (3,036) (2,103)
Share of results (net of tax) of equity-accounted:
- associates 5 47,843 39,765 - -
- joint ventures 6 61 1,256 - -
Profit/(Loss) before tax 43,186 31,518 5,096 (20,596)
Tax expense 28 (7,873) (6,446) - -

Profit/(Loss) for the year 35,313 25,072 5,096 (20,596)
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___Group___ ___Company__
2023 2022 2023 2022
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Other comprehensive income/(expenses),
net of tax
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Change in fair value of equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) 1 (11) - -
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign
operations 296 42 - -
Share of other comprehensive income of
equity-accounted associates 7,526 9,016 - -
Total other comprehensive income for the year 7,823 9,047 - -
Total comprehensive income/(expenses)
for the year 43,136 34,119 5,096 (20,596)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company 35,034 24,809 5,096 (20,596)
Non-controlling interests 4 279 263 - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year 35,313 25,072 5,096 (20,596)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company 42,857 33,856 5,096 (20,596)
Non-controlling interests 4 279 263 - -
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year 43,136 34,119 5,096 (20,596)
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary
share (sen) 29 7.00 4.95

The notes on pages 116 to 180 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

/
/
Foreign
currency
Share translation
capital reserve
Group RM’000 RM’000
At 1 January 2022 454,802 12,662
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations - 42
Change in fair value of equity investments designated at FVOCI - -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates (Note 5) - 9,016
Total other comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year - 9,058
Profit for the year - -
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year - 9,058
Redemption and cancellation of preference shares previously issued
by a subsidiary to minority shareholder [Note 36 (ii)] - -
At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023 454,802 21,720
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations - 296
Change in fair value of equity investments designated at FVOCI - -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates (Note 5) - 7,526
Total other comprehensive income for the year - 7,822
Profit for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 7,822
Acquisition of a subsidiary [Note 36 (i)] - -
Distribution to the non-controlling interest:
- Dividend paid - -
At 31 December 2023 454,802 29,542
(Note 18) (Note 19)

The notes on pages 116 to 180 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Attributable to owners of the Company /
Non-distributable / Distributable
Non-

Treasury Other Retained controlling Total
shares reserves earnings Total interests equity
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

(34,748) 123 797,986 1,230,825 21,737 1,252,562
- - - 42 - 42
- (11) - (11) - (11)
- - - 9,016 - 9,016
- (11) - 9,047 - 9,047
- - 24,809 24,809 263 25,072
- (11) 24,809 33,856 263 34,119
- . - - (50) (50)
(34,748) 112 822,795 1,264,681 21,950 1,286,631
- - - 296 - 296
- 1 - 1 - 1
- - - 7,526 - 7,526
- 1 - 7,823 - 7,823
- - 35,034 35,034 279 35,313
- 1 35,034 42,857 279 43,136
- - - - 648 648
- - - - (6,000) (6,000)
(34,748) 113 857,829 1,307,538 16,877 1,324,415

(Note 19) (Note 19) (Note 19) (Note 4)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

/

Company

At 1 January 2022
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year
At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to owners of the Company _ /

/__Non-distributable_/ Distributable

At 31 December 2023

Share Treasury Retained Total
capital shares earnings equity
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
454,802 (34,748) 71,210 491,264

- - (20,596) (20,596)
454,802 (34,748) 50,614 470,668
- - 5,096 5,096
454,802 (34,748) 55,710 475,764
(Note 18)  (Note 19) (Note 19)

The notes on pages 116 to 180 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

___Group ___ ___Company ____
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax 43,186 31,518 5096  (20,596)

Adjustments for:
Amortisation of:

- intangible assets (Note 9) 113 681 - -
- investment properties (Note 8) 3,492 2,111 - -
Change in fair value of equity investments designated at FVOCI (1) 11 - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 3.3) 9,768 9,899 251 244
Dividend income from:
- an associate - - (8,412) (4,206)
- other investments (2) (125) - -
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of:
- property, plant and equipment (Note 24) (176) (39) - -
- investment properties (Note 24) (1,396) - - -
- deemed disposal of associates (Notes 25 and 37) 205 55 - -
Finance costs (Note 26) 11,113 11,969 7,406 5,679
Finance income (Note 26) (8,510) (8,419) (4,370) (3,576)
Net changes in impairment loss on financial assets

and contract assets 2,483 (2,319) - -
Impairment loss on investment in a subsidiary (Note 24) - - - 18,000
Reversal on impairment loss on investment in an associate

(Note 24) - - (4,761) -
Share of results of equity-accounted associates and

joint ventures (47,904) (41,021) - -
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (248) (247) (221) (238)
Operating profit/(loss) before changes in working capital 12,123 4,074 (5,011) (4,693)
Inventories 15,904 (9,041) - -
Contract costs (1,241) 153 - -
Contract assets/liabilities (41,148) 2,661 - -
Trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments 32,296 51,226 (4,744) (4,059)
Trade and other payables 2,322 (24,348) (4,157) 14,678
Provisions (3,472) - - -
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 16,784 24,725 (13,912) 5,926
Tax (paid)/refunded (6,531) (8,821) 24 32

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 10,253 15,904 (13,888) 5,958
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED)

___Group ___ ___Company ____
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of:

- property, plant and equipment (Note 3) (2,555) (1,748) (26) (44)
- investment properties (Note 8) (9,585) (7,757) - -
- asubsidiary, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired

[Note 36(i)] 744 - - -
Proceeds from disposal of:
- property, plant and equipment 176 39 - -
- investment properties 1,630 - - -
Increase in investment of a subsidiaries [Note 36(ii)] - - (800) (3,650)

Redemption and cancellation of preference shares
by a subsidiary previously issued to a minority

shareholder [Note 36(ii)] - (50) - -
Change in pledged deposits 8,422 5 2,824 (36)
Dividends received 8,414 4,331 8,412 4,206
Distribution of profits from a joint venture (Note 6) - 1,530 - -
Interest received 8,495 8,389 628 387
Net cash from investing activities 15,741 4,739 11,038 863
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (6,000) - - -
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 45,000 84,500 45,000 40,000
Repayment of loans and borrowings (80,828) (120,216) (46,000) (46,878)
Repayment of hire purchases (158) (151) (91) (88)
Interest paid (11,146) (12,016) (3,496) (3,025)
Net cash used in financing activities (53,132) (47,883) (4,587) (9,991)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (27,138) (27,240) (7,437) (3,170)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 248 247 221 238
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 247,758 274,751 29,797 32,729

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year [Note (i)] 220,868 247,758 22,581 29,797
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i. Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents included in the statements of cash flows comprise the following statements of

financial position amounts:

Group Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Deposits placed with licensed banks with maturities
less than three months 167,072 203,852 18,901 24,940
Cash in hand and at banks 48,475 39,769 3,680 4,857
Housing Development Accounts 5,321 4,137 - -

Total cash and cash equivalents as shown in the

statements of cash flows (also see Note 16) 220,868 247,758 22,581 29,797

ii. Cash outflows for leases as a lessee

Included in the net cash from operating activities comprise the following payments made for leases as a lessee:

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Payments relating to:
- short-term leases 14 21 234 234
- leases of low-value assets 454 357 1 3
Total cash outflows for leases 468 378 235 237

iii.  Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities (see Note 20)

Term Revolving Hire
loans credits purchases Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group
At 1 January 2022 96,019 172,000 798 268,817
Changes in financing cash flows 16,284 (52,000) (151) (35,867)
At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023 112,303 120,000 647 232,950
Changes in financing cash flows (25,828) (10,000) (158) (35,986)
At 31 December 2023 86,475 110,000 489 196,964
Company
At 1 January 2022 1,378 85,000 476 86,854
Changes in financing cash flows 43,122 (50,000) (88) (6,966)
At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023 44,500 35,000 388 79,888
Changes in financing cash flows (6,000) 5,000 (91) (1,091)
At 31 December 2023 38,500 40,000 297 78,797

The notes on pages 116 to 180 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Naim Holdings Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed on

the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The address of its principal place of business and registered
office is 9th Floor, Wisma Naim, 2 72 Mile, Rock Road, 93200 Kuching, Sarawak, Malaysia.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” and individually referred to as “Group entities”) and
the Group’s interests in associates and joint ventures.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding and the provision of management services to its
subsidiaries while the other Group entities’ principal activities are as stated in Note 4 to the financial statements.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 April 2024.

1. Basis of preparation

a. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS Accounting
Standards”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the requirements of the Companies
Act 2016 in Malaysia.

The following are amendments of the MFRSs that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards
Board (“MASB”) but have not been adopted by the Group and by the Company:

MFRSs / Amendments Effective date
Amendment to MFRS 16, Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024

Amendments to MFRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements
- Non-current Liabilities with Covenants and Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current 1 January 2024
Amendments to MFRS 107, Statement of Cash Flows and MFRS 7,

Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
Amendments to MFRS 121, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

- Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025

Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statement and MFRS 128,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture Yet to be confirmed

The Group and the Company plan to apply the abovementioned amendments:

» from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2024 for those amendments that are effective for annual
periods beginning on 1 January 2024; and

+ from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2025 for those amendments that are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

The initial applications of the abovementioned amendments are not expected to have any material financial
impacts to the current period and prior period financial statements of the Group and of the Company.

. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, other than equity securities measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) which are measured based on fair value basis
(see Note 11).

. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information is presented in RM and has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise stated.
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1. Basis of preparation (continued)
d. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Key areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are disclosed in Note 2 and as follows:

* Revenue recognition from contracts with customers [also see Note 2(n)(i) and Note 23]

Revenue is recognised as and when the control of the assets is transferred to the customers and it is prob-
able that the Group will be entitled to recover the consideration in exchange for transferring the promised
assets to the customers. If the amount of consideration varies due to discounts, rebates, penalties, incen-
tives and other similar items, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled
based on the expected value of the most likely outcome. If the contract with customers contains more than
one performance obligation, the amount of consideration is allocated to each performance obligation based
on the relative stand-alone selling price of the assets.

Timing of control of the assets transferred to customers may be over time or at a point in time, depending
on the terms of contract.

The Group recognises revenue from contracts over time if it creates an asset with no alternative use to the
Group and the Group has enforceable right to payment for the performance completed to-date. Revenue is
recognised over the period of contract by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of perfor-
mance obligation, which is measured based on the proportion that costs incurred to-date as a percentage
of the estimated total costs of contract.

For the portion of performance obligations that is not satisfied over time, the revenue is recognised at a
point in time at which the customer obtains controls of the promised assets.

Significant judgement is required in determining the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance
obligations, identification of performance obligations to be fulfilled under contract and estimated total costs
to complete as well as the recoverability of the contracts. In making such estimations and judgements, the
Group relies on, inter alia, past experiences and the assessment of its experienced team and experts.

* Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets [see Notes 13.2(c) and 32.3(a)]

The Group has measured impairment losses of its trade receivables and contract assets based on the risk
of loss of each customer individually based on their financial information, historical payment trends and
other external available information. This evaluation is however inherently judgemental and requires mate-
rial estimates, including the amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to be received, which may
be susceptible to changes.

* Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (see Notes 3.6)

The Group assesses whether there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment used in the hotel
operation may be impaired. The recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment is determined
using discounted cash flow projections. Nevertheless, the estimation is judgemental in determining appro-
priate key assumptions that may affect the value of estimated recoverable amount, which include the level
of occupancy rates and room rates to be achieved over a period of time as well as the rate of profit returns.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. Basis of preparation (continued)
d. Use of estimates and judgements (continued)
* Impairment assessment of investment in subsidiaries and associates (see Notes 4 and 5)

At each reporting date, the Company performs assessment whether there is any indication that investment
in a subsidiary and/or an associate may be impaired. In determining the estimated recoverable amount of
the investments, the Company evaluates the anticipated future performance of the said investee companies
and considers other external and internal sources of information that may affect the value of estimated
recoverable amount such as anticipated sales and appropriate profit margin which requires a substantial
level of estimation and judgements.

* Impairment assessment of completed developed properties held for sale (see Note 7)

Completed developed properties are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In determining the
estimated net realisable value of these inventories, the Group analyses and assesses on a regular basis the
historical trends of product sales performance and pricing, expected future market demand of the product
as well as the estimated sales costs that may be incurred in securing the sales. The estimation is highly
judgemental as product demand and pricing levels could change from time to time following the changes in
customers’ preferences, product affordability and property market demand and supply conditions.

2. Material accounting policies information

During the year, the Group has adopted the amendments to MFRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements
and MFRS Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies. The amendments require the disclosure
of ‘material’, rather than ‘significant’ accounting policies. The amendments aim to provide some guidance to
entities in providing necessary useful and entity specific accounting policy information that could assist users to
understand other information disclosed in the financial statements. Although the amendments do not result in any
changes to the Group’s accounting policies which have been applied consistently by the Group entities to the
periods presented in these financial statements, it has impacted the accounting policy information disclosure in
the financial statements.

The material accounting policies information is disclosed as below and shall be read in conjunction with the
relevant notes to the financial statements:

a. Property, plant and equipment (see Note 3)
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each
component of an item of property, plant and equipment from the date that they are available for use. Freehold
land is not depreciated. Assets under construction are not depreciated until the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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2. Material accounting policies information (continued)
a. Property, plant and equipment (see Note 3) (continued)
Depreciation (continued)

The estimated useful lives of assets for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Leasehold land (right-of-use asset) over remaining lease terms of 49 years to 99 years
Buildings 5, 10 and 50 years
Hotel property 50 years
Furniture and fittings 6 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 2 to 10 years
Plant and machinery 5 years and over quarry licence period
Jetty and wharf over quarry licence period
b. Leases

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of properties in which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not
to separate non-lease components and instead accounts for the lease and non-lease components as a
single lease component.

As a lessee
The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.

The right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. It is depreciated using the
straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-
of-use asset or the end of the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the respective Group entities’ incremental borrowing rate. The
lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land, being a right-of-use asset held under a lease contract, is classified under different
category of assets namely property, plant and equipment, investment property or as inventories
depending on its nature of use.

As a lessor

When the Group accounts for a lease as finance lease when the lease transfers substantially all of the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the lease is regarded as
an operating lease and lease payments received is recognised as income in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term in profit or loss.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sublease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sublease as an
operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Material accounting policies information (continued)

c. Investment in subsidiaries (see Note 4)

Investment in subsidiaries is measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses.

The Group accounts for all changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
as equity transactions between the Group and its non-controlling interest holders. Any difference between the
Group’s share of net assets before and after the change, and any consideration received or paid, is adjusted
to or against Group reserves.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder
that controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established. The assets and
liabilities acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts recognised previously in the acquirees’ financial
statements without restatement. Any resulting gain/loss is recognised directly in equity.

Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the former
subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the former subsidiary
from the consolidated statement of financial position. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is
recognised in profit or loss.

If the Group retains any interest in the former subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date
that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as a financial asset
depending on the level of influence retained.

. Investment in associates (see Note 5)

Investment in associates is measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses.

In the consolidated financial statements, the Group accounts for its investments in associates using the equity
method.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that interest
including any long-term investments is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has an obligation, or has made, payments on behalf of the associate.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, any retained interest in the former
associate at the date when significant influence is lost is measured at fair value.

When the Group’s interest in an associate decreases but does not result in a loss of significant influence, any
retained interest is not re-measured.

. Investment in joint ventures (see Note 6)

The Group regards a joint arrangement as “joint venture” when the Group has rights only to the net assets of
the arrangements. The Group accounts for its interest in the joint venture using the equity method.

Investment in joint venture is measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less any
impairment losses.
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2. Material accounting policies information (continued)

f.

Inventories (see Note 7)
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventories of the Group comprise the
following:
i. Land held for property development
This comprise land or such portions thereof on which no development activities have been carried out or
where development activities are not expected to be completed within the normal operating cycle of 2 to 3
years. Such land is classified as non-current portion of inventory.
When development activities have commenced and where it can be demonstrated that the development
activities can be completed within the normal operating cycle, such land is reclassified and included as part
of property development costs (i.e. current portion of inventory).
ii. Property development costs
Property development costs are initially measured at cost and subsequently recognised as an expense
to profit or loss when the controls of the inventory are transferred to the customer, either over time or at a
point in time.
When the development activities are completed, the associated property development costs for the unsold
property are reclassified as completed developed properties held for sale.
iii. Other inventories
Raw materials, consumables and manufactured/trading inventories (comprising building and construction
materials) are measured based on the weighted average cost method.
Investment properties (see Note 8)
Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.
When an item of property, plant and equipment or inventories is transferred to investment property or vice
versa following a change in its use, the transfer do not change the carrying amount of the property transferred.
No remeasurement of cost of property is required, as permitted under paragraph 59 of MFRS 140, Investment
Property.
Amortisation

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of depreciable
investment property. Buildings under construction are not amortised until the assets are ready for their intended
use. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Leasehold land (right-of-use asset) over remaining lease terms of 60, 85 and 98 years
Buildings 10 and 50 years

. Intangible assets (see Note 9)

Goodwill with an indefinite useful life arising from business combinations is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. It is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually and whenever there
is an indication that they may be impaired.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. These intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the useful life period from the date that they are available for use.

Stone quarry licence is amortised over the licence period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Material accounting policies information (continued)

Deferred tax (see Note 10)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax is not recognised for the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss.

Financial instruments (applicable for Note 11, 12, 15, 16, 20 and 21)
Financial assets

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Debtinvestment that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the debt investment are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

For any equity investment that is not held for trading purpose, at its initial recognition, the Group irrevocably
elects to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other comprehensive income. This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income as
described above are measured at fair value through profit or loss. On initial recognition, the Group or the
Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income as at fair value through profit or loss if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at their fair value.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at their fair
value. Other financial liabilities not categorised as fair value through profit or loss are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Contract costs (see Note 13)

Cost to fulfil a contract comprises cost that relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract and it is
expected to be recovered. The contract costs are initially measured at cost less any impairment loss. The cost
is amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of revenue recognition to which the asset
relates.

Non-current assets held for sale (see Note 17)

Non-current assets held for sales are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
of disposal.

Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment or investment properties once classified as held for sale are
not amortised or depreciated. In addition, equity accounting of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures
ceases once classified as held for sale.

. Share capital (see Note 18)

Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are not remeasured subsequently.
Costs directly attributable to the issue of instruments classified as equity are recognised as a deduction from
equity.
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2. Material accounting policies information (continued)

n. Revenue (see Note 23)

i.

ii.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sales of land and properties

Revenue from sales of land and properties (comprising landed properties, condominiums and apartments
as well as vacant land lots) is recognised as and when the controls of the properties are transferred to
customer, either over time or at a point in time.

Revenue is recognised over the contract period based on the progress towards completion of that
performance obligation by using cost incurred method. Otherwise, the revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains controls of the properties.

Revenue from sales of land and properties is measured at the fixed transaction prices under sale contract.
The contracts may sometime include multiple promises to customers and therefore accounted for as
separate performance obligations. The total consideration in a sale contract is allocated to all identified
distinct performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. When there is not directly
observable price, the Group applies expected cost plus margin to derive stand-along selling price.

Construction contracts

Construction revenue is recognised over time when a contract customer controls all of the works in progress
as construction works take place. When the different elements of the construction contracts are not highly
inter-related with, or dependent on, other contracting activities, the Group segregates each performance
obligation for individual contract revenue recognition.

Sales of goods
Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the goods are delivered and accepted by customers.

Rental and other related revenue from accommodation operation

Revenue is recognised in profit or loss over time during the period of stay by hotel guests and tenants.
Revenue from food and beverage and other ancillary services is recognised at a point in time at which
customers receive and consume the goods and services.

Services rendered

Revenue (comprising management fee income and property maintenance services) is recognised at a point
in time when the services are rendered, at a rate as agreed with customer.

Other revenue
i. Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised on the date that the Group’s or the Company’s right to receive payment
is established, which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

ii. Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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3. Property, plant and equipment
(Right-of-
use assets)
Freehold Leasehold

land land Buildings
Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Cost
At 1 January 2022 747 6,939 54,100
Additions - - 201
Transfer from investment properties (Note 8.2) - - 1,589
Disposals/Write-offs - - -
Adjustment* - - -
Reclassifications - - -
At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023 747 6,939 55,890
Additions - - 27
Transfer from investment properties (Note 8.2) - - 16,919
Disposals/Write-offs - - -
Acquisition through business combination - - -
Reclassifications - - -
At 31 December 2023 747 6,939 72,836

Depreciation and impairment loss

At 1 January 2022

- Accumulated depreciation - 1,430 14,572
- Accumulated impairment loss . - -

- 1,430 14,572
Depreciation for the year (Note 3.3) - 77 1,387
Transfer from investment properties (Note 8.2) - - 360

Disposals/Write-offs = - -
At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023

- Accumulated depreciation - 1,507 16,319
- Accumulated impairment loss = - -

- 1,507 16,319
Depreciation for the year (Note 3.3) - 77 1,350
Transfer from investment properties (Note 8.2) - - 1,444

Disposals/Write-offs = - -
At 31 December 2023

- Accumulated depreciation - 1,584 19,113
- Accumulated impairment loss o = -

- 1,584 19,113
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2022 747 5,509 39,528
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 747 5,432 39,571
At 31 December 2023 747 5,355 53,723
(Note 3.4)

*  Representing adjustments related to over-accruals of some estimated costs to completion for certain hotel assets previously provided
for following the finalisation of accounts with contractors/suppliers in the previous financial year.
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Furniture Assets

Hotel and Motor Office Plantand Jetty and under
property fittings vehicles equipment machinery wharf construction Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
45,007 43,644 11,168 27,216 37,951 1,952 190 228,914
123 551 48 301 87 - 437 1,748
- - - - - - - 1,589
- (70) (616) (144) (11) - - (841)
- (115) - - - - - (115)
(84) - - - 84 - - -
45,046 44,010 10,600 27,373 38,111 1,952 627 231,295
6 48 - 231 14 - 2,229 2,555
- 2,069 - 299 - - - 19,287
- (70) (784) (364) )] - - (1,219)
- 172 - 18 - - - 190
- - - - 2,320 - (2,320) -
45,052 46,229 9,816 27,557 40,444 1,952 536 252,108
1,819 21,255 10,242 22,864 26,578 1,952 - 100,712
3,323 - - - - - - 3,323
5,142 21,255 10,242 22,864 26,578 1,952 - 104,035
898 3,968 201 1,932 1,557 - - 10,020
- - - - - - - 360
- (70) (616) (144) (11) - - (841)
2,717 25,153 9,827 24,652 28,124 1,952 - 110,251
3,323 - - - - - - 3,323
6,040 25,153 9,827 24,652 28,124 1,952 - 113,574
901 3,836 205 1,788 1,648 - - 9,805
- 208 - 33 - - - 1,685
- (70) (784) (364) (1) - - (1,219)
3,618 29,127 9,248 26,109 29,771 1,952 - 120,522
3,323 - - - - - - 3,323
6,941 29,127 9,248 26,109 29,771 1,952 - 123,845
39,865 22,389 926 4,352 11,373 - 190 124,879
39,006 18,857 773 2,721 9,987 - 627 117,721
38,111 17,102 568 1,448 10,673 - 536 128,263
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Company

Cost

At 1 January 2022
Additions

At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023
Additions

At 31 December 2023
Depreciation

At 1 January 2022
Depreciation for the year (Note 3.3)

At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023
Depreciation for the year (Note 3.3)

At 31 December 2023

Carrying amounts

At 1 January 2022

At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023

At 31 December 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Furniture

and Office Motor
Buildings fittings equipment  vehicles Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
5,952 1,123 322 560 7,957
- - 44 - 44
5,952 1,123 366 560 8,001
- - 26 - 26
5,952 1,123 392 560 8,027
1,210 1,122 316 9 2,657
119 - 13 112 244
1,329 1,122 329 121 2,901
119 - 20 112 251
1,448 1,122 349 233 3,152
4,742 1 6 551 5,300
4,623 1 37 439 5,100
4,504 1 43 327 4,875
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3.1Titles to properties
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Strata titles of certain building has yet to be issued by the relevant authority, analysed as follows:

Carrying amount
Hotel property

3.2Motor vehicles under hire purchases

Carrying amount of leased assets

3.3Allocation of depreciation

Depreciation for the year is allocated as follows:

Recognised in profit or loss (Note 24)

Capitalised in:
- contract costs
- inventory (under property development costs)

___Group ___
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000

38,111 39,006

____Group ___ ___Company ___
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
530 724 327 439
___Group __ ___Company ___
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
9,768 9,899 251 244
1 5 = .
36 121 - -

9,805 10,020

251 244
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

3.4Leasehold land (Right-of-use assets)

Cost
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022/1 January 2023
and 31 December 2023

Depreciation
At 1 January 2022
Depreciation for the year

At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023
Depreciation for the year

At 31 December 2023

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2022

At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023

At 31 December 2023

Right-of-use assets — Leasehold land
Hotel property
Motor vehicles

(Right-of-use assets)

__ lLeasehold land___

(unexpired (unexpired
lease term lease term

3.5Assets charged to banks as security for borrowings (see also Note 20.2)

more than less than

50 years) 50 years) Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
5,991 948 6,939
1,045 385 1,430
59 18 77
1,104 403 1,507
59 18 77
1,163 421 1,584
4,946 563 5,509
4,887 545 5,432
4,828 527 5,355

___Group ___ ___Company ___
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
724 732 - -
38,111 39,006 - -
530 724 327 439
39,365 40,462 327 439
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
3.6 Impairment loss

At each financial year, the Group performs assessment to determine whether there is any indication that the
hotel property may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of the hotel property was estimated based on its value in use by reference to the
discounted cash flow projections over the remaining useful life of the said asset. The estimation of value in use
was determined using a pre-tax discount rate of 8%. Other key assumptions used in the estimation include
average room rate, occupancy rate, food and beverages revenue and appropriate rate of profit return.

A total impairment loss of RM3,323,000 was made against the carrying amount of the hotel property in prior
years. During the current year under review, the Group re-evaluated the recoverable amount of the hotel
property based on the same basis applied thereto and concluded that neither further impairment loss is
necessary nor any reversal of impairment loss previously made is required.

4. Investment in subsidiaries
___Company ____
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000
Cost of investment
Unquoted shares, at cost 438,012 437,212
Less: Impairment loss (99,789) (99,789)

338,223 337,423

Additional investment in a subsidiary

On 17 November 2023, the Company subscribed for additional 800,000 new ordinary shares issued by its wholly
owned subsidiary, Naim Academy Sdn. Bhd. for a cash consideration of RM800,000 [also see Note 36(ii)].

Impairment loss

At each financial year, the Company conducts an impairment evaluation to ascertain whether there is any indication
that the investment in any of its subsidiaries may be impaired.

The recoverable amount is based on the estimated equity value in use of the said subsidiary. The equity value
was derived from the value in use with reference to the anticipated future performance of the subsidiary. Key
assumptions used in the estimation include projected revenue from secured projects and expected projects, other
income and administrative expenses adjusted for some appropriate annual rate of increment over the projection
periods of 5 years and a pre-tax discount rate of 6%. Total impairment loss of RM99,789,000 was made against
the carrying amount of the investment in a subsidiary in prior years.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the investment in the said subsidiary approximates its estimated
recoverable amount; hence neither further impairment loss is necessary nor any reversal of impairment loss
previously made is required.
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4. Investment in subsidiaries (continued)
Information of subsidiaries
Details of the subsidiaries, all of which the principal place of business and country of incorporation is in Malaysia

except for Naim Engineering Construction (Fiji) Limited, Naim Quarry (Fiji) Limited and Naim Premix (Fiji Limited,
which the principal place of business and country of incorporation is in Fiji and the Company’s interests therein

are shown as follows:

Effective

ownership interest and

voting interest

)
Name of subsidiary Principal activities 2023 o) 2022
Direct subsidiaries

Naim Land Sdn. Bhd. (“NLSB”) Property developer and civil 100.0 100.0

and building contractor

Naim Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (“NESB”) Civil, building and earthwork contractor 100.0 100.0
Naim Assets Sdn. Bhd. (“NASB”) Investment holding 100.0 100.0
Naim Academy Sdn. Bhd. (“NACSB”) Investment holding 100.0 100.0
Subsidiaries of NLSB

Desa limu Sdn. Bhd. Property developer 60.0 60.0
Peranan Makmur Sdn. Bhd. (“PMSB”) Property developer 70.0 70.0
Khidmat Mantap Sdn. Bhd. Property developer 100.0 100.0
Naim Realty Sdn. Bhd. Property investment 100.0 100.0
Naim Supply & Logistic Sdn. Bhd. Trading of construction materials 100.0 100.0
Naim Commercial Sdn. Bhd. Property developer 100.0 100.0
Naim Human Capital Sdn. Bhd. Provision of management services 100.0 100.0
Naim Cendera Lapan Sdn. Bhd. Quarry licensee and operator 100.0 100.0
Jelas Kemuncak Resources Sdn. Bhd. Quarry operator 100.0 100.0
Simbol Warisan Sdn. Bhd. Quarry licensee 75.0 75.0
Yakin Pelita Sdn. Bhd. Property investment 100.0 100.0
Petrochemical Hub Sdn. Bhd. Property investment 100.0 100.0

and provision of workers’
accommodation business

Dataran Wangsa Sdn. Bhd. Property developer 100.0 100.0
Yakin Jelas Sdn. Bhd. Property investment 100.0 100.0
Pavilion Quest Sdn. Bhd.** Property investment 100.0 100.0
Solid Greenland Sdn. Bhd.** Property investment 100.0 100.0
Naim Ready Mix Sdn. Bhd. Inactive 100.0 100.0
TR Green Sdn. Bhd. Inactive 100.0 100.0
Naim (MM2H) Sdn. Bhd. Inactive 100.0 100.0
Naim Incorporated Berhad Inactive 100.0 100.0
Naim Oil & Gas Sdn. Bhd. Inactive 100.0 100.0
Kuching Paragon Sdn. Bhd. Inactive 100.0 100.0
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4. Investment in subsidiaries (continued) Effecti
ective

ownership interest and
voting interest

)
Name of subsidiary Principal activities 2023 - 2022
Subsidiaries of NLSB (continued)
Miri Paragon Sdn. Bhd. Inactive 100.0 100.0
Naim Data Sdn. Bhd.** Inactive 100.0 100.0
Naim Mortgage Sdn. Bhd. Inactive 100.0 100.0
Lotus Paradigm Sdn. Bhd. Inactive 70.0 70.0
Subsidiaries of NESB
Naim Capital Sdn. Bhd. (“NCSB”) Investment holding 100.0 100.0
Naim Overseas Sdn. Bhd. (“NOSB”) Investment holding 100.0 100.0
NAIM GAMUDA (NAGA) JV SDN. BHD. Civil contractor 70.0 70.0
Naim Binaan Sdn. Bhd. Inactive 100.0 100.0
Naim Premix Sdn. Bhd. Inactive 100.0 100.0
Naim Equipment Sdn. Bhd. Inactive 100.0 100.0
Naim Recruitment & Agency Sdn. Bhd. ** Inactive 100.0 100.0
BDA Naim Sdn. Bhd. Inactive 80.0 80.0
Subsidiaries of NASB
Naim Hotel Sdn. Bhd. Hotel operation 100.0 100.0
Naim Property Services Sdn. Bhd. ** Provision of property 100.0 100.0
management services

Bintulu Paragon Sdn. Bhd. Property and investment holding 100.0 100.0
Subsidiary of NACSB
Naim Skills Academy Sdn Bhd

(formerly known as

Permyjaya Sino Education Sdn. Bhd.) Inactive 100.0 100.0
Mawar Education Centre Sdn. Bhd.** Provision of

educational business 53.3 -

Subsidiaries of NCSB
Naim Capital Port Sdn. Bhd. Civil contractor 100.0 100.0
Naim Capital Housing Sdn. Bhd. Civil contractor 100.0 100.0
Subsidiary of PMSB
Harmony Faber Sdn. Bhd. Property investment 70.0 70.0
Subsidiaries of NOSB
Naim Engineering Construction (Fiji) Limited # Inactive 99.9 99.9
Naim Quarry (Fiji) Limited # Inactive 99.9 99.9
Naim Premix (Fiji) Limited # Inactive 99.9 99.9

** Not audited by KPMG PLT.
# The Group uses unaudited management accounts of these dormant foreign subsidiaries for the consolidation
purpose for the current financial year.
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4. Investment in subsidiaries (continued)
Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) in subsidiaries

The Group’s subsidiaries that have material NCI are as follows:

NAIM Other
GAMUDA subsidiaries
Desallmu (NAGA)JV with
Sdn. Bhd. SDN.BHD. immaterial
(“DISB”)  (“NAGA”) NCI Total
31.12.2023 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
NCI percentage of ownership/voting interest 40% 30%
Carrying amount of NCI 14,595 5,943 (3,661) 16,877
Profit/(Loss) allocated to NCI 204 2,087 (2,012) 279
The following table summarises the financial information of the Group’s material NCI in DISB and NAGA:
DISB NAGA
RM’000 RM’000
Summarised financial information before intra-group elimination
As at 31 December 2023
Non-current assets 550 -
Current assets 40,297 105,103
Current liabilities (4,361) (85,292)
Net assets 36,486 19,811
Year ended 31 December 2023
Revenue 1,347 198,788
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 590 6,956
Cash flows from/(used in):
- operating activities 1,028 6,411
- investing activities 1,104 1,120
- financing activities - (20,000)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,132 (12,469)
Dividend paid to NCI - (6,000)
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4. Investment in subsidiaries (continued)
Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) in subsidiaries (continued)
The Group’s subsidiaries that have material NCI are as follows:
NAIM Other
GAMUDA subsidiaries
Desallmu (NAGA)JV with
Sdn. Bhd. SDN.BHD. immaterial
(“DISB”)  (“NAGA”) NCI Total
31.12.2022 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
NCI percentage of ownership/voting interest 40% 30%
Carrying amount of NCI 14,391 9,856 (2,297) 21,950
Profit/(Loss) allocated to NCI 190 1,043 (970) 263
The following table summarises the financial information of the Group’s material NCI in DISB and NAGA:
DISB NAGA
RM’000 RM’000
Summarised financial information before intra-group elimination
As at 31 December 2022
Non-current assets 565 -
Current assets 39,860 96,244
Current liabilities (4,529) (63,390)
Net assets 35,896 32,854
Year ended 31 December 2022
Revenue 800 263,430
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 394 3,477
Cash flows from:
- operating activities 7,832 5,921
- investing activities 645 677
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 8,477 6,598
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5. Investment in associates

At cost

Shares in Malaysia

- unquoted

- quoted

Share of post-acquisition reserves

Less: Impairment loss

Market value
Quoted shares in Malaysia

Impairment loss

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

__Group ___ ___Company ____
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
32,416 32,416 = -
181,976 181,976 181,976 181,976
272,942 226,190 - -
487,334 440,582 181,976 181,976
- - (4,857) (9,618)
487,334 440,582 177,119 172,358
464,040 377,334 464,040 377,334

At each financial year, the Company performs assessment to determine whether there is any indication that the
carrying amount of investment in any of its associates may be impaired.

The estimated recoverable amount is determined with reference to the underlying assets and liabilities of the
associates as well as the anticipated future performance of the associates. The estimated recoverable amount is
adjusted from the higher of the estimated value in use or the estimated fair value less costs of disposal used in the
impairment assessment in the associates. During the year, the Company reassessed the recoverable amount of
an associate on the same basis and concluded a reversal of a previously provided impairment loss amounting to
RM4,761,000, in view of the improved results achieved by the said associate (see Note 24).
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Details of the material associates, all of which the principal place of business and country of incorporation is in

Malaysia, are as follows:

Name of entity

Dayang Enterprise Holdings Bhd. (“DEHB”)

Samalaju Properties Sdn. Bhd. (“SPSB”) #

GAMUDA NAIM ENGINEERING AND
CONSTRUCTION (GNEC)
SDN. BHD. (“GNEC”) ** @

Perdana Petroleum Berhad (“PPB”)

Kempas Sentosa Sdn. Bhd. **

Miri Specialist Hospital Sdn. Bhd. (‘“MSHSB”) #

# Held through NLSB
** Held through NESB
@ Financial year end of 31 July

Effective ownership interest

and voting interest (%)

Nature of relationship 2023

Provision of offshore topside 24.22
maintenance services, minor
fabrication works, offshore
hook-up and commissioning
works, chartering of marine
vessels and equipment. This
is one of the vehicles through
which the Group has ventured
into the oil and gas industry

Property and township development, 39.00

including providing temporary
accommodation
facilities, in line with

Group’s existing property development

segment operation

One of civil contractors 35.00
to the Group

Provision of marine support 3.477
services for the oil and gas
industry, which is a subsidiary
of DEHB

One of civil contractors to the 40.00
Group and hiring of plant and
equipment to the Group

Specialist hospital 15.53M
operator in one of the Group’s
existing township development

2022

24.22

39.00

35.00

3.477

40.00

15.53M
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5. Investment in associates (continued)

A Although the Group’s direct shareholdings is less than 20% in PPB, i.e. 3.47% as of 31 December 2023,
the Directors have determined that the Group has significant influence, partly because it has two (2) board
representatives in PPB. In addition, the Group’s effective equity interest in PPB, if taking into account of the
Group’s share of the equity interest in PPB held through DEHB, is about 18.87% (2022: 18.90%) as at financial
year end.

AN While the Group’s equity interest in MSHSB is less than 20%, the Group has determined that it still has
significant influence in the investee company because of the two (2) representatives the Group currently has
on the board of MSHSB.

All associates’ financial year ends on 31 December, other than that marked with “@”. For the purpose of applying
the equity method for associates with a different financial year from the Group’s, the last available audited financial
statements and/or management accounts up to 31 December 2023 have been used.

The following table summarises the information of the Group’s material associates, adjusted for any material differences
in accounting policies and reconciles the information to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the associates.

Summary of financial information

Group
DEHB SPSB GNEC PPB
31.12.2023 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
As at 31 December
Non-current assets 1,501,706 159,988 11,437 703,019
Current assets 1,017,915 67,083 239,083 204,851
Non-current liabilities (196,817) (842) (4,186) (117,605)
Current liabilities (435,416) (165,489) (197,384) (123,877)
Non-controlling interests (234,742) - - -
Net assets 1,652,646 60,740 48,950 666,388
Redeemable convertible
preference shares (“RCPS”) - (44,100) - (7,057)

1,652,646 16,640 48,950 659,331

Year ended 31 December
Profit/(Loss) for the year 218,920 (1,185) (13,099) 44,415
Other comprehensive income 23,309 - - 36,644

Total comprehensive
income/(expenses) for the year 242,229 (1,185) (13,099) 81,059

Included in the total
comprehensive income is:
Revenue 1,112,987 46,742 184,432 313,913
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5. Investment in associates (continued)

Summary of financial information (continued)

Group
Other
immaterial
DEHB SPSB GNEC PPB associates Total

31.12.2023 (continued) RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Reconciliation of net assets to

carrying amount as at

31 December
Group’s share of net assets 400,256 6,490 17,132 22,857 3,974 450,709
Group’s share of RCPS - 19,110 - - - 19,110
Goodwill 19,674 - - - - 19,674
Elimination of unrealised profit - - - - (2,159) (2,159)
Carrying amount in the statement

of financial position 419,930 25,600 17,132 22,857 1,815 487,334
Group’s share of results for

the year ended 31 December
Group’s share of:
- profit/(loss), net of tax 51,759 (462) (4,585) 1,464 (333) 47,843
- other comprehensive income 6,170 - - 1,356 - 7,526
Group’s share of total

comprehensive income/(expenses) 57,929 (462) (4,585) 2,820 (333) 55,369

Other information
Dividends received 8,412 - - - - 8,412
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5. Investment in associates (continued)

Summary of financial information (continued)

Group
DEHB SPSB GNEC PPB
31.12.2022 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
As at 31 December
Non-current assets 1,504,627 156,799 15,925 713,767
Current assets 855,495 85,859 245,609 106,556
Non-current liabilities (336,554) (2,586) (41) (151,713)
Current liabilities (370,132)  (178,147) (199,444) (83,281)
Non-controlling interests (204,429) - - -
Net assets 1,449,007 61,925 62,049 585,329
Redeemable convertible
preference shares (“RCPS”) - (44,100) - (7,993)
1,449,007 17,825 62,049 577,336
Year ended 31 December
Profit for the year 124,244 6,231 13,780 11,385
Other comprehensive income 30,386 - - 47,711
Total comprehensive income for the year 154,630 6,231 13,780 59,096

Included in the total comprehensive income is:
Revenue 984,183 30,963 288,886 196,628
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5. Investment in associates (continued)

Summary of financial information (continued)

Group
Other
immaterial
DEHB SPSB GNEC PPB associates Total
31.12.2022 (continued) RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Reconciliation of net assets to
carrying amount as at
31 December
Group’s share of net assets 350,936 6,952 21,717 20,045 4,500 404,150
Group’s share of RCPS - 19,110 - - - 19,110
Goodwill 19,674 - - - - 19,674
Elimination of unrealised profit - - - - (2,352) (2,352)
Carrying amount in the statement
of financial position 370,610 26,062 21,717 20,045 2,148 440,582
Group’s share of results for
the year ended 31 December
Group’s share of:
- profit/(loss), net of tax 30,645 4,096 4,823 294 (93) 39,765
- other comprehensive income 7,359 - - 1,657 - 9,016
Group’s share of total
comprehensive income/(expenses) 38,004 4,096 4,823 1,951 (93) 48,781
Other information
Dividends received 4,206 - - - - 4,206
6. Investment in joint ventures - Group
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000
At cost
Capital contribution 4,500 4,500
Share of post-acquisition reserves (2,393) (2,473)

2,107 2,027
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6. Investment in joint ventures - Group (continued)

The joint arrangements in which the Group participates are all involved in civil and building construction works,
including oil and gas related construction projects. As the Group is only entitled to the net assets of the joint
arrangements, the Group has therefore classified its interest in the following entities as joint ventures. Details of
the joint ventures, all of which are based in Malaysia, are as follows:

Name of entity

NESB-Hock Peng JV
PPES Works-NLSB JV
Sinohydro-Naim JV *
Samsung-Naim JV *

*

Inactive since the completion of the projects undertaken by joint ventures.

Effective
voting interest (%)
2023 2022
51.0 51.0
45.0 45.0
50.0 50.0
10.0 10.0

The following table summarises the information of the Group’s material joint ventures, adjusted for any material
differences in accounting policies (if any) and reconciles the information to the carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in the joint venture, which is accounted for using equity method.

Summary of financial information

31.12.2023

As at 31 December
Current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Year ended 31 December
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income/(expenses)
for the year (before tax)

Included in the total comprehensive income/(expenses)
Interest income

Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount
as at 31 December

Group’s share of net assets and carrying amount in the
statement of financial position

Group’s share of results for the
year ended 31 December

Group’s share of profit/(loss) and total comprehensive
income/(expenses), net of tax

Other information
No distribution of profit received during the financial year.

PPES Other
NESB- Works immaterial
Hock -NLSB joint
Peng JV JV  ventures Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
4,039 1,413
(1,252) (39)
2,787 1,374
161 (4)
27 -
1,421 618 68 2,107
63 (2) - 61
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6. Investment in joint ventures - Group (continued)

Summary of financial information (continued)

PPES Other
NESB- Works immaterial
Hock -NLSB joint
Peng JV JV  ventures Total
31.12.2022 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
As at 31 December
Current assets 23,427 1,413
Current liabilities (20,801) (35)
Net assets 2,626 1,378
Year ended 31 December
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income/(expenses) for
the year (before tax) 3,246 (5)
Included in the total comprehensive income/(expenses)
Revenue 71,755 -
Interest income 24 -
Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount
as at 31 December
Group’s share of net assets and carrying amount in the
statement of financial position 1,339 620 68 2,027
Group’s share of results for the year ended 31 December
Group’s share of profit/(loss) and total comprehensive
income/(expenses), net of tax 1,258 (2) - 1,256

Other information
Distribution of profit received by the Group 1,530 - - 1,530
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7. Inventories

Non-current

At cost
Land held for property development (right-of-use assets) (Note 7.1)

Current

At cost

Completed goods for sale

- Developed properties (Note 7.2)

- Manufactured/Trading inventories (construction and building materials)

Raw materials and consumables

Properties under construction
- Property development costs

At net realisable value

Completed goods for sale

- Manufactured/Trading inventories
- Developed properties

Total inventories

Recognised in profit or loss:
- inventories recognised as cost of sales

7.1 Land held for property development

Security

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Group
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000
165,448 172,242
306,909 323,494
2,175 836
450 409
238,775 231,348
548,309 556,087
139 139
783 1,989
922 2,128
549,231 558,215
714,679 730,457
57,688 62,585

Certain parcels of leasehold land with carrying amounts of RM26,709,000 (2022: RM40,160,000) are charged

to bank(s) as security for certain term loan facility(ies) (see Note 20.2).

7.2 Government grant for developed properties

A government grant amounting to RM27,872,000 was received in prior years to facilitate and reimburse certain
development costs incurred for a mixed development project upon the fulfilment of conditions imposed.

The grant received was initially recognised as a reduction in cost of developed properties and will be
systematically realised to profit or loss when the developed properties under the said project are sold. As at
the year end, accumulated grant of RM12,903,000 (2022: RM12,646,000) has been realised to profit or loss

as a reduction in cost of sale for the total developed properties sold.



8. Investment properties - Group

Cost

At 1 January 2022

Additions

Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(Notes 3 and 8.2)

At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023

Additions

Reclassifications

Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(Notes 3 and 8.2)

Disposals

At 31 December 2023

Amortisation

At 1 January 2022

Amortisation for the year (Note 24)

Transfer to property,plant and equipment
(Notes 3 and 8.2)

At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023

Amortisation for the year (Note 24)

Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(Notes 3 and 8.2)

Disposals

At 31 December 2023

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2022

At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023

At 31 December 2023

Fair value (see Note 8.5)
At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2023

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
(Right-of-use assets)
Long-term leasehold land Buildings
(unexpired lease term under
more than 50 years) Buildings construction Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
32,353 61,752 59 94,164
- - 7,757 7,757
(1,589) - (1,589)
32,353 60,163 7,816 100,332
- - 9,585 9,585
- 17,401 (17,401) -
- (19,287) - (19,287)
(263) - - (263)
32,090 58,277 - 90,367
3,806 14,272 - 18,078
454 1,657 - 2,111
- (360) - (360)
4,260 15,569 - 19,829
452 3,040 - 3,492
- (1,685) - (1,685)
(29) - - (29)
4,683 16,924 - 21,607
28,547 47,480 59 76,086
28,093 44,594 7,816 80,503
27,407 41,353 - 68,760
88,834 53,279 - 142,113
118,373 51,392 - 169,765
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. Investment properties - Group (continued)

8.1Investment property with a carrying amount of RM40,768,000 (2022: RM41,793,000) is charged to a bank as

security for a term loan facility granted to a subsidiary (see Note 20.2).

8.2 Transfer to property, plant and equipment

Following the change in their use, some investment properties are reclassified to property, plant and equipment

(see Note 3) and are measured at their carrying amount before the reclassification.

8.3The following are recognised in profit or loss in respect of investment properties.

2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000
Lease income 5,258 5,157
Direct operating expenses:
- income generating investment properties 4,397 4,299
- non-income generating investment properties 147 60
8.4Maturity analysis of operating lease payments
The undiscounted operating lease payments receivables are as follows:
2023 2022
As a lessor RM’000 RM’000
Within one year 3,532 4,496
One to two years 2,436 1,844
Two to three years 1,634 969
Three to four years 779 769
More than four years 3,333 4,106
11,714 12,184

8.5Fair value information

Fair value of investment properties as at end of the reporting period are categorised as Level 3, summarised

as follows:

2023
Group RM’000
Leasehold land 118,373
Buildings 51,392

2022
RM’000

88,834
53,279

Level 3 fair value

The Level 3 fair value of investment properties, determined for disclosures purposes, is generally ascertained
by the management with reference to valuation reports, issued by an external independent property valuer, who
has appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of
the properties being valued. For certain investment properties, the Group occasionally reviews and reassesses
their fair value based on informal comparison method by reference to similar/comparable properties in markets

that are not active, adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size and areas.
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8. Investment properties - Group (continued)
8.5Fair value information (continued)

For the determination of the fair value of a building, the investment method is mostly used whereby net rental
is capitalised at the appropriate market yield and anticipated occupancy rates achieved. For land, the fair value
is determined using the comparison method, whereby adjustments for differences in various factors affecting
the value are made.

Highest and best use

The land classified as investment property is currently held under titles for residential, commercial and/or
mixed development purpose. As the use of certain land is currently undetermined, it is therefore impractical to
estimate its highest and best use.

A major part of the buildings comprise hypermarket malls situated at a prime area, which is the highest and best
use of the land on which they were built. Other buildings comprising office lots and commercial retail units are
similarly regarded as having been put at their highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

9. Intangible assets - Group

Stone

quarry
Goodwill licence Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Cost

At 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022/1 January 2023 - 10,206 10,206
Acquisition through business combinations [Note 36(i)] 60 - 60
At 31 December 2023 60 10,206 10,266

Amortisation and impairment loss

At 1 January 2022

- Accumulated amortisation - 8,051 8,051
- Accumulated impairment loss - 1,361 1,361
- 9,412 9,412
Amortisation for the year (Note 24) - 681 681
At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023
- Accumulated amortisation - 8,732 8,732
- Accumulated impairment loss - 1,361 1,361
- 10,093 10,093
Amortisation for the year (Note 24) - 113 113
At 31 December 2023
- Accumulated amortisation - 8,845 8,845
- Accumulated impairment loss - 1,361 1,361

- 10,206 10,206

Carrying amounts

At 1 January 2022 - 794 794
At 31 December 2022/1 January 2023 - 113 113
At 31 December 2023 60 - 60

Intangible assets comprise expenditure incurred to acquire a stone quarry licence and goodwill arising from the
acquisition of a subsidiary [see Note 36 (i)].

9.1 Impairment loss
An impairment loss of RM1,361,000 was recognised in prior years based on estimated recoverable amount of
the stone quarry licence, which was determined based on estimated value in use of the intangible asset over
a period of 2 years. The said intangible asset has been fully amortised as at year end.

9.2 Amortisation

The amortisation of the stone quarry license is recognised in cost of sales.




10.Deferred tax assets and liabilities - Group

Recognised deferred tax
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Liabilities
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000

(18,888)  (19,536)
(2,038) (2,013)

Net
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000

(18,888)  (19,536)
(2,038) (2,013)

117 117
555 554
1,208 1,940

(20,926)  (21,549)
444 382

(19,046) (18,938)

Assets

2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000

Fair value adjustment on acquisition
of subsidiaries™ - -
Property, plant and equipment - -
Capital allowances carried forward 117 117
Tax losses carried forward 555 554
Other items 1,208 1,940
Tax assets/(liabilities) 1,880 2,611
Set off of tax (444) (382)
Net tax assets/(liabilities) 1,436 2,229

(20,482)  (21,167)

(19,046)  (18,938)

* This relates to fair value adjustments of certain land held for property development, property development
costs, property, plant and equipment and investment property of the subsidiaries acquired in prior years. This
deferred tax liability is progressively reversed to profit or loss when the subject land is developed and/or sold
or when the land is amortised, as the case may be.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have recognised deferred tax assets of RM1,436,000 (2022: RM2,229,000)
based on the estimation of probable utilisation of those deductible temporary differences in the foreseeable future.

Movements in deferred tax during the year are as follows:

Group

Fair value adjustment on acquisition
of subsidiaries

Property, plant and equipment

Capital allowances carried forward

Tax losses carried forward

Other items

Recognised At Recognised
At in profit 31.12.2022/ in profit At
1.1.2022 or loss 1.1.2023 orloss 31.12.2023
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
(20,453) 917 (19,536) 648 (18,888)
(1,750) (263) (2,013) (25) (2,038)
99 18 117 - 117
505 49 554 1 555
1,898 42 1,940 (732) 1,208
(19,701) 763 (18,938) (108) (19,046)

(Note 28)

(Note 28)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10.Deferred tax assets and liabilities - Group (continued)

1.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets of RM52,338,000 (2022: RM49,739,000) have not been recognised in respect of the following
temporary differences (stated at gross) because it is uncertain if sustainable future taxable profits will be available
against which the group entities concerned can utilise the benefits therefrom:

Group
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000
Capital allowances carried forward 12,426 11,658
Unutilised tax losses 204,505 196,960
Other items 1,144 (1,370)

218,075 207,248

Capital allowances do not have any expiration date under the current tax regime. Under prevailing tax laws,
unutilised tax losses can be carried forward for a maximum of 10 consecutive years of assessment with effect
from the year of assessment 2019.

The expiry date of unutilised tax losses is shown below:

Year of assessment Amount Expiry

RM’000 Year
-2018 135,996 2028
-2019 7,215 2029
- 2020 14,970 2030
- 2021 19,912 2031
- 2022 12,063 2032
-2023 14,349 2033

204,505

Other investments - Group
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000

Fair value through other comprehensive income

- unquoted shares in Malaysia 2,963 2,963

- quoted shares in Malaysia 55 54
3,018 3,017

Fair value (also Note 32.4)

- unquoted shares in Malaysia 2,963 2,963

- quoted shares in Malaysia 55 54
3,018 3,017

The Group designated the other investments as fair value through other comprehensive income because these
investments in equity securities represent investments that the Group intends to hold over a long-term period.

Total dividend income receivables from the other investments held on hand during the financial year are RM2,000
(2022: RM125,000) (see Note 24).
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12.Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Non-current

Trade receivables
Trade receivables from contracts with customers

(Notes 12.1) 13,021 28,159 - -
Other receivables
Other receivables (Note 12.2) - 2,541 - -

13,021 30,700 - -

Current

Trade receivables
Trade receivables from contracts with customers

(Notes 12.1 and 12.2) 31,682 39,953 - -
Amount due from an associate (Note 12.4) 2,256 2,256 - -

33,938 42,209 = .

Other receivables

Other receivables (Note 12.2) 25,867 32,001 - 27
Amount due from:

- subsidiaries (Note 12.3) - - 85,222 76,709
- associates (Note 12.4) 3,147 3,155 - -

29,014 35,156 85,222 76,736

Total current 62,952 77,365 85,222 76,736

Grand total 75,973 108,065 85,222 76,736

12.1The Group’s trade receivables include a sum of RM25,601,000 (2022: RM38,108,000) arising from a
construction project undertaken for a government-related entity under a deferred payment scheme
where the contract proceeds (including associated financing income) are to be recovered over a period of
10 years. The outstanding receivable is unsecured, bears interest at 6.75% (2022: 7.80%) per annum and
is expected to be collected as follows:

Group
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000
Within 1 year 12,580 11,818
1-2year 13,021 12,641
2 - 3 year - 13,649

25,601 38,108
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12.Trade and other receivables (continued)

122Included in the trade and other receivables of the Group:

i. A remaining sum of RM4,594,000 (2022: RM10,092,000) due from a debtor for sale of two (2) parcels
of leasehold land in prior years. The amount is expected to be recovered over a period of four years

commencing from October 2020 or upon the issuance of titles, whichever is later.

ii. Asum of RM9,576,000 (2022: RM9,576,000) deposited to the High Court pending issuance of the final
account of certain completed projects before the Group could file its legitimate claim for the said amount

against a counter party.

iii. Advance payment amounting to RM5,000,000 (2022: RM5,000,000) given to a subcontractor which is an

associate of the Group in respect of a construction project.

iv. A trade amount due from a director of RM618,000, which is not past due as at the year end.

123Included in the amount due from subsidiaries is a sum of RM74,620,000 (2022: RM69,920,000), which is
unsecured and bears interest at rates ranging from 4.95% to 5.35% (2022: 3.73% to 4.86%) per annum. The

remaining balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
124The amount due from associates are unsecured and interest-free.

1250ffsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides information of financial assets and liabilities that have been set off for presentation

purpose:
Net
Gross Offset carrying
amount balance amount
Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2023
Trade receivables 14,318 (14,318) -
Trade accruals 14,318 (14,318) -
2022
Trade receivables 11,339 (11,339) -
Trade accruals 11,339 (11,339) -

Certain trade and other receivables and trade payables were set off for presentation purpose as these
receivables include some payments in-kind portion made in relation to the contractors’ claims. They intend
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

126 The Group’s and the Company’s credit risk management and assessment of loss allowance for expected credit

loss on trade and other receivables is disclosed in Note 32.3 (a).
13.Contract with customers
131Contract costs

Cost to fulfil contract
- costs incurred directly on contracts with customers

2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000

5,972 4,730
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13. Contract with customers (continued)
13.2 Contract assets/(liabilities)
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000
Contract assets 81,689 39,316
Contract liabilities (3,096) (1,871)

Contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to contract consideration for works completed on
properties and/or construction contracts but not yet billed to customers at the reporting date. Typically, the
amount will be billed in the manner as established in the contracts with customers. The contract assets are
reclassified as trade receivables when the rights to contract consideration become unconditional.

Contract liabilities primarily relate to contract consideration received and/or the Group’s unconditional rights
to contract consideration in advance of the performance under the contracts. The contract liabilities are
expected to be recognised as revenue based on the expected timing of completion of works.

a. Movements in the contract assets/liabilities balances during the year includes:

2023 2022

RM’000 RM’000

Revenue recognised arising from contract liabilities at the beginning of period 1,713 2,771

Contract assets at the beginning of period reclassified to trade receivables 46,491 38,325
Increase in revenue recognised in previous periods arising from change in

contract considerations 3,340 3,093

b. Contract assets of the Group as at 31 December 2022 included a sum of RM52,000 held by customers
and was regarded as conditional rights to contract considerations until the completion of performance
under the contracts with customers. Such amount was transferred to trade receivables when the rights
became unconditional.

c. Impairment assessment on contract assets

Credit risk on contract assets arises from construction projects and sale of development properties. The
Group adopts a ‘simplified approach’ when performing impairment assessments for contract assets.
Since the contract assets have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables,
estimation techniques or significant assumptions made in assessing the loss allowance are generally
the same. The Group applies similar credit risk management on its financial instrument for contract
assets [see Note 32.3(a)].

Management estimates the loss allowance on contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit loss (“ECL”), taking into account the historical default experience. None of the contract assets
at the end of the reporting period is past due. No aging analysis of contract assets are presented as
the outstanding balances as at 31 December 2023 are current. The exposure of credit risk for contract
assets as at the end of the reporting period by geographic region is Malaysia.

The following tables provides information about ECLs for contract assets:

2023 2022
Group RM’000 RM’000
Gross amount 88,985 46,612
Loss allowance (7,296) (7,296)

Net amount 81,689 39,316
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13.Contract with customers (continued)
132 Contract assets/(liabilities) (continued)
c. Impairment assessment on contract assets (continued)

The movement in the allowance for impairment loss of contract assets as at each reporting period are as

follows:

Group RM’000
Balance at 1 January 2022 9,579
Reversal (2,283)
Balance at 31 December 2022/1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 W

14.Deposits and prepayments

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Deposits 5,623 5,463 19 19
Prepayments 2,443 4,986 1 1
8,066 10,449 20 20

15.Other financial assets

The Group classifies deposits with licensed banks not held for working capital purpose that have a maturity of
more than 3 months as other financial assets.

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Cash pledged with licensed banks (Note 15.1) 6,994 15,416 - 2,824

15.1Cash pledged as security

a. Deposits of RM1,164,000 in the prior year was pledged as security to licensed banks for the issuance of
bank guarantees for housing projects.

b. A sum of RM6,994,000 (2022: RM14,252,000) is placed in designated sinking fund bank accounts as part
of the requirements for term loan facilities granted to the Group for the purpose of interest and principal
payments at intervals of 1 to 3 months periods, as the case may be.
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16. Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Deposits placed with licensed banks with maturities

less than three months 167,072 203,852 18,901 24,940
Cash in hand and at banks 48,475 39,769 3,680 4,857
Housing Development Accounts (Note 16.1) 5,321 4,137 - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 220,868 247,758 22,581 29,797

16.1A balance of RM5,321,000 (2022: RM4,137,000) is maintained in designated Housing Development
Accounts (“HDA”) pursuant to the Sarawak’s Housing Development (Control and Licensing) Ordinance, 2013
and Housing Development (Control and Licensing) Regulations, 2014 in connection with certain property
development projects of the Group. The utilisation of these balances is restricted before the completion of
housing development projects and fulfilment of all relevant obligations to the purchasers, such that the cash
can only be withdrawn from such HDA accounts for the purpose of completing the particular projects in the
manner as defined under the ordinance.

17. Assets held for sale - Group
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000
Assets classified as held for sale
Property, plant and equipment 88 83

18. Share capital

Group and Company
2023 2022
Ordinary shares with no par value
Issued and fully paid shares with no par value
classified as equity instruments:
Number of shares (’000)
Opening and closing balances 513,799 513,799
Amount (RM’000)
Opening and closing balances 454,802 454,802

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share during a poll at general meetings of the Company.

19.Reserves

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Retained earnings 857,829 822,795 55,710 50,614
Treasury shares (34,748) (34,748) (34,748) (34,748)
Foreign currency translation reserve 29,542 21,720 - -
Other reserves 113 112 - -

852,736 809,879 20,962 15,866
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19. Reserves (continued)

191Treasury shares
Treasury shares comprise cost of acquisition of the Company’s own shares.

The shareholders of the Company, via an ordinary resolution passed in the Annual General Meeting held on
25 May 2023, approved the Company’s plan to repurchase its own shares in aggregate not exceeding 10% of
the total number of issued shares. The Directors of the Company are committed to enhancing the value of the
Company to its shareholders and believe that the repurchase plan can be applied in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

There were no repurchases of issued share capital by the Company during the current and previous financial
year. As at 31 December 2023, the Company holds 13,056,000 (2022: 13,056,000) of the Company’s own
shares. All rights attached to the treasury shares that are held by the Company are suspended until those
shares are reissued.

19.2Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve arises from the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries
and/or associates whose presentation currency differs from the presentation currency of the Group’s financial
statements which is RM.

19.30ther reserves

Other reserves comprise cash flow hedge in associates as well as changes in fair value of equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

20.Loans and borrowings

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Non-current
Secured term loans 66,357 87,130 32,500 38,500
Hire purchases (Note 20.1) 325 490 202 297

66,682 87,620 32,702 38,797

Current

Unsecured revolving credits 110,000 120,000 40,000 35,000
Secured term loans 20,118 25,173 6,000 6,000
Hire purchases (Note 20.1) 164 157 95 91

130,282 145,330 46,095 41,091
Total 196,964 232,950 78,797 79,888
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20.Loans and borrowings (continued)

20.1Hire purchases are payable as follows:

2023 2022
Payment Profit Principal Payment Profit Principal
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Group

Less than one year 180 16 164 180 23 157
Between one to two years 172 9 163 180 16 164
Between two to five years 166 4 162 338 12 326
518 29 489 698 51 647

Company
Less than one year 105 10 95 105 14 9
Between one to two years 105 6 99 105 10 95
Between two to five years 105 2 103 209 7 202
315 18 297 419 31 388

20.2Security
Term loans

+ secured by fixed charges over certain parcels of leasehold land and buildings (erected thereon)
[see Notes 3.5, 7.1 and 8.1].

+ secured by assignment of proceeds from a construction project undertaken by a subsidiary.

+ secured by debentures over future and present assets of certain subsidiaries.

» covered by corporate guarantee from the Company and/or another subsidiary, where applicable.

Revolving credits

The revolving credit facilities granted to direct subsidiaries are covered by way of corporate guarantees from
the Company.

The revolving credit facility of the Company, is on a clean basis.

Hire purchases

The hire purchases are secured on the respective leased assets acquired (see Note 3.2).
20.3Covenant for term loan facilities

The Group is required to maintain a debt to equity ratio of not exceeding 1 time.

21.Trade and other payables

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Trade payables
Trade payables (Note 21.1) 74,713 81,383 - -
Amount due to associates (Note 21.3) 50,319 12,811 - -
Trade accruals 119,268 144,617 - -

244,300 238,811 - -
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21.Trade and other payables (continued)

Group Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Other payables
Other payables 2,400 2,255 - -
Accruals 4,810 7,250 563 556
Advance payments and deposits received 6,726 7,152 - 195

Amount due to:

- subsidiaries (Note 21.2) - - 72,963 73,022
- associates (Note 21.3) 549 549 - -
14,485 17,206 73,526 73,773
Total 258,785 256,017 73,526 73,773

21.1Included in trade payables of the Group are retention sums and performance bonds amounting to RM49,524,000
(2022: RM54,811,000).

212Included in the amount due to subsidiaries is a sum of RM71,183,000 (2022: RM70,175,000) bearing interest
ranging from 4.95% to 5.35% (2022: 3.73% to 4.86%) per annum.

The remaining balance is interest free and unsecured.

213The amount due to associates are unsecured and interest-free.

22.Provision

Group
RM’000

Provision for maintenance
At 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022/1 January 2023 3,472
Reversed during the year (Note 24) (3,472)

At 31 December 2023 -

Provisions for maintenance were made in prior years to cater for some anticipated contract maintenance/
rectification works at site for certain completed projects.

The Group has reversed the balance of provision during the current financial year upon the expiry of maintenance
warranty period (see Note 24).



23.Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers (Note 23.1)

Other revenue
- Rental income
- Dividend income from an associate

2L1Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers

Major products/services
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Group Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
312,405 364,070 2,550 2,428
4,547 4,496 - -
. z 8,412 4,206
316,952 368,566 10,962 6,634

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022

RM’000 RM’000

RM’000 RM’000

157

Construction contracts

Sales of properties

Sales of goods

Revenue from accommodation operations
Services rendered

220,207 265,352
71,804 85,618

Timing of recognition

Over time
At a point in time

7,399 2,731 - -
11,443 9,514 - -
1,552 855 2,550 2,428
312,405 364,070 2,550 2,428
275,949 340,318 2,550 2,428
36,456 23,752 - -
312,405 364,070 2,550 2,428
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23.Revenue (continued)

23.2Nature of goods and services

The following information reflects the typical nature of transactions with customers:

Construction Revenue is Based on the Liquidated and Defect liability period
contracts recognised over time milestones, as ascertained up to 24 months,
which is measured by established in damages depending on the
actual costs incurred contracts. arising from late nature of contract
to the estimated total completion, as works performed.
contract cost. established in
contracts.
Sales of Revenue is Based on Discounts/rebates Defect liability period
properties recognised, either billings granted during up to 24 months,
over time, or at milestones as promotional as established in
a point in time, spelled out in periods. contracts and/or
depending on the contracts. based on historical
timing when controls Liquidated and business practices.
of the assets pass to ascertained
buyers. damages
arising from late
completion, as
established in
contracts.
Sales of Revenue is Credit period of - -
goods recognised at a point up to 60 days
in time when the from invoice
goods are delivered date.
and accepted by
customers.
Revenue Revenue is Based on - -
for recognised, either published
accommodation over time, or at terms as stated
operations a point in time, in invoices/
depending on the contracts.
timing when the
customers receive
and consume the
services/goods.
Services Revenue is Credit period of - -
rendered recognised over time up to 60 days
(comprising  when the services are from invoice
management rendered. date.
fee and

maintenance
services)
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23.Revenue (continued)
23.3Unsatisfied performance obligations
The unsatisfied performance obligations at the reporting date are expected to be fulfilled in the following

periods based on the management’s best estimations and on the assumption that there are no significant
changes to the existing contractual periods and contract considerations.

2023 2022

RM’000 RM’000

Within one year 252,523 337,400
More than one year 258,798 309,082

511,321 646,482

Represented by:
Construction contracts 490,694 634,431
Sales of properties 20,627 12,051

511,321 646,482

24, Results from operating activities
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Results from operating activities is arrived at
after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration:

- Audit fee
KPMG PLT 380 371 82 82
Overseas affiliates of KPMG PLT - 25 - -
Other auditors 17 17 - -
- Non-audit fee
KPMG PLT 26 26 20 20
Local affiliates of KPMG PLT 177 181 17 16
Overseas affiliates of KPMG PLT 35 14 - -
Other auditors 8 8 - -

Material expense
Amortisation of:

- intangible asset (Note 9) 113 681 - -
- investment properties (Note 8) 3,492 2,11 - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (excluding those

capitalised in inventories and contract costs) (Note 3.3) 9,768 9,899 251 244
Personnel expenses (including key management personnel):
- contributions to state plans 3,891 3,581 - -
- wages, salaries and others 31,894 29,429 - -

Foreign exchange loss
- realised 24 2 - -

Impairment loss on other assets:
- investment in a subsidiary - - - 18,000
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24.Results from operating activities (continued)

Results from operating activities is arrived at
after charging/(crediting):

Net change in impairment loss on:
Financial assets at amortised cost [Note 32.3(a)]
Contract assets [Note 13.2(c)]

Expenses arising from leases: (Note 24.1)
Expenses relating to:

- short-term leases

- leases of low-value assets

Material income

Dividend income from other investments (Note 11)
- quoted shares in Malaysia

- unquoted shares in Malaysia

Dividend income from subsidiaries and associates
- quoted shares in Malaysia

Gain on disposal of:

- property, plant and equipment

- investment property
Reversal of impairment loss on investment in an associate
(Note 5)

Reversal of provision for maintenance (Note 22)

Foreign exchange gain
- unrealised

Lease expenses

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2,483 (36) = -
- (2,283) - -
14 21 234 234
454 357 1 3
) (1 - -
- (124) - -
- - (8,412) (4,206)
(176) (39) - -
(1,396) - - -
- - (4,761) -
(3,472) - - -
(248) (247) (221) (238)

241The Group leases office equipment and premises with contract terms of 5 years or less. These leases are
short-term leases and/or leases of low-value assets. The Group has elected not to recognise them as right-
of-use assets and the associated lease liabilities for these leases. The lease payments for these short-term
leases and low-value assets are recognised as expenses to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

25.Other non-operating expenses

Other non-operating expense comprises losses on deemed disposals amounting to RM205,000 (2022: RM55,000)
arising from the dilution in the effective equity interest in an associate (see Note 37).

26.Finance income and costs

Recognised in profit or loss

Interest income of financial assets calculated using the
effective interest method that are at amortised costs:

- fixed deposits and cash funds

- interest income from deferred payment scheme

- other finance income

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
5,223 4,077 600 398
2,638 3,530 - -
649 812 3,770 3,178
8,510 8,419 4,370 3,576
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26.Finance income and costs (continued)

Recognised in profit or loss (continued)
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Interest expense of financial liabilities that
are not at fair value through profit or loss:

- loans and borrowings 10,990 10,785 3,598 3,108
- other finance costs 123 1,184 3,808 2,571
11,113 11,969 7,406 5,679

27.Compensations to key management personnel
Compensations paid/payable to key management personnel are as follows:

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Directors of the Company

- Fees 450 450 450 450
- Short-term employee benefits 3,493 3,826 3,291 3,340
3,943 4,276 3,741 3,790

Other key management personnel
(including subsidiaries’ directors)

- Fees 60 60 - -

- Short-term employee benefits 3,219 3,634 142 57
3,279 3,694 142 57

Total 7,222 7,970 3,883 3,847

Other key management personnel comprise persons, other than the Directors of the Company, having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the group entities either directly or indirectly.

The estimated monetary value of benefit-in-kind is RM72,000 (2022: RM44,000).
28. Tax expense

Major components of tax expense/(income) include:
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Current tax expense/(income)

- current year 7,682 7,426 - -
- prior years 83 (217) - -
7,765 7,209 - -

Deferred tax expense/(income) (Note 10)
- recognition and reversal of temporary differences 64 (926) - -
- prior years 44 163 - -
108 (763) - -

Total tax expense recognised in profit or loss 7,873 6,446 - -
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28. Tax expense (continued)

Reconciliation of tax expense

Profit/(Loss) for the year
Total tax expense

Profit/(Loss) excluding tax
Share of tax of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures

Tax calculated using Malaysian tax rate of 24%
Effect of different tax rates in foreign jurisdiction
Non-deductible expenses

Non-taxable income

Movements in unrecognised deferred tax assets
Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised

Under-/(Over-)provision in prior years
Less: Share of tax of equity-accounted associates
and joint ventures

Total tax expense

29.Earnings per ordinary share - Group

Basic and Diluted earnings per ordinary share

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
35,313 25,072 5,096 (20,596)
7,873 6,446 - -
43,186 31,518 5,096 (20,596)
28,435 17,515 - -
71,621 49,033 5,096 (20,596)
17,189 11,768 1,223 (4,943)
9) (19) - -
20,194 10,072 1,939 5,952
(3,792) (486) (3,162) (1,009)
4,371 2,680 - -
(1,772) - - -
36,181 24,015 - -
127 (54) - -
(28,435) (17,515) - -
7,873 6,446 - -

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share was based on the net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding after excluding treasury shares

bought back in previous years, presented as follows:

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (RM’000)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares, net of
treasury shares bought back in previous years ('000)

Basic and Diluted earnings per share (sen)

30.Dividend

No dividends were paid during the current and previous financial year.

2023
35,034
500,743

7.00

2022
24,809
500,743

4.95




ANNUAL REPORT 2023 163

31.Operating segments

The Group has three reportable segments, which are the Group’s strategic business units. For each of the strategic
business units, the Group Managing Director (‘GMD?”), being the Chief Operating Decision Maker, reviews internal
management reports for resource allocation and decision making at least on a quarterly basis. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s existing reporting segments:

Property development - Development and construction of residential and commercial properties (including sale
of vacant land).

Construction - Construction of buildings, roads, bridges and other infrastructure and engineering works
(including oil and gas related construction projects).

Others - All other business segments with profit contributions less than 10%. This includes
trading of buildings and construction materials, provision of sand extraction and land
filling services, property investment and management, hotel operation, education as
well as quarry operation.

Performance is measured based on segment profit before tax, as included in the internal management reports
that are reviewed by the GMD. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that
such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of the segments relative to other entities that
operate within these industries.

There are varying levels of integration between the reportable segments. Inter-segment pricing is determined on
negotiated terms. Unallocated items mainly comprise corporate and headquarters expenses and other investment
income, which are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to any operating segment.

Segment assets and liabilities
The GMD reviews the statements of financial position of subsidiaries for resource allocation and decision making,

instead of a summary of consolidated assets and liabilities by segments. As such, information on segment assets
and segment liabilities is not presented.
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31. Operating segments (continued)

Property development
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000

Revenue from external customers 71,804 85,618
Inter segment revenue - -

Total segment revenue 71,804 85,618

Segment profit/(loss) 6,763 6,520

Share of results (net of tax) of:
- associates, other than Dayang Enterprise Holdings Bhd. (“DEHB group”) (462) 4,096
- joint ventures - -

6,301 10,616

Unallocated expenses

Loss on deemed disposal of interests in an associate, Perdana Petroleum Berhad (“PPB”)
Share of results (net of tax) of associates, DEHB group’ (in oil and gas segment)

Tax expense

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company

Included in the measure of segment profit/(loss) are:
Depreciation and amortisation
(including depreciation capitalised in inventories and contract costs)
Finance income
Finance costs
Net changes in impairment loss on financial assets and contract assets

' Share of results of DEHB Group comprised the share of results from two associates, DEHB and PPB
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Construction Others Inter-segment elimination Consolidated
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
220,207 265,352 24,941 17,596 - - 316,952 368,566
35,570 54,872 3,174 2,794 (38,744) (57,666) - -
255,777 320,224 28,115 20,390 (38,744) (57,666) 316,952 368,566
4,527 1,551 (6,839) (8,706) (6,724) (3,981) (2,273) (4,616)
(4,918) 4,730 - - - - (5,380) 8,826
61 1,256 - - - - 61 1,256
(330) 7,537 (6,839) (8,706) (6,724) (3,981) (7,592) 5,466
(2,240) (4,832)
(205) (55)
53,223 30,939
(7,873) (6,446)
35,313 25,072
7,823 9,047
43,136 34,119
(279) (263)
42,857 33,856

Property development Construction Others Consolidated
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
4,098 4,605 137 165 9,175 8,042 13,410 12,812
(637) (812) (2,638) (3,530) - - (3,275) (4,342)
2,319 3,786 2,960 4,191 5,834 3,992 11,113 11,969
422 343 1,999 (2,283) 62 (379) 2,483 (2,319)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31.Operating segments (continued)

Major customers

The following are the major customers with revenue equal to or more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue

individually:
Revenue Segment
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000
Customer A 167,383 235,509 Construction

Geographical information

The Group is mainly domiciled in Malaysia. The contribution from the foreign operations based in Fiji is minimal

and immaterial to warrant disclosure.
32.Financial instruments
32.1Categories of financial instruments

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:
a. Amortised cost (“AC”)

b. Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) - equity instrument designated upon initial

recognition.
Financial assets
Tradeand Cash and Other
Other other cash financial
investment receivables equivalents assets Total
Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
At 31.12.2023
Carrying amount 3,018 75,973 220,868 6,994 306,853
AC - 75,973 220,868 6,994 303,835
FVOCI 3,018 - - - 3,018
At 31.12.2022
Carrying amount 3,017 108,065 247,758 15,416 374,256
AC - 108,065 247,758 15,416 371,239
FVOCI 3,017 - - - 3,017
Financial liabilities
Loans Trade and
and other
borrowings payables* Provisions Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

At 31.12.2023

Carrying amount (196,964) (252,059) - (449,023)

AC (196,964) (252,059) - (449,023)
At 31.12.2022

Carrying amount (232,950) (248,865) (3,472) (485,287)

AC (232,950) (248,865) (3,472) (485,287)

*

Excluding advance payment received and/or deposit received from contract customers
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32.Financial instruments (continued)

32.1Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Trade Cashand Other
and other cash financial
receivables equivalents assets Total
Company RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
At 31.12.2023
Carrying amount 85,222 22,581 - 107,803
AC 85,222 22,581 - 107,803
At 31.12.2022
Carrying amount 76,736 29,797 2,824 109,357
AC 76,736 29,797 2,824 109,357
Financial liabilities
Loans Trade and
and other
borrowings payables Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
At 31.12.2023
Carrying amount (78,797) (73,526) (152,323)
AC (78,797) (73,526) (152,323)
At 31.12.2022
Carrying amount (79,888) (73,773) (153,661)
AC (79,888) (73,773) (153,661)
32.2Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Net gains/(losses) on:
Financial assets at AC 6,251 8,700 4,591 3,814
Financial liabilities at AC (11,113) (11,969) (7,406) (5,679)
Equity instruments designated at FVOCI 3 114 - -
(4,859) (3,155) (2,815) (1,865)
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32.Financial instruments (continued)

32.3Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
* Credit risk;

* Liquidity risk; and

* Market risk

a. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from its receivables from customers and deposits
in banks. The Company’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from unsecured short term advances to
subsidiaries and financial guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to certain subsidiaries.
There are no significant changes as compared to previous year.

Receivables

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

Receivables from external parties

The management regularly reviews the credit risk on customers and takes appropriate measures to
enhance credit control procedures. At each reporting date, the Group or the Company assesses whether
any of its receivables are credit impaired.

The gross carrying amount of credit impaired receivables will be written off, either partially or in full, when
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group or the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, the receivables that are impaired
(either partially or fully) are still subject to debt recovery enforcement activities to recover the amounts
due from the customers. There are no significant changes as compared to previous year.

The contract assets [see Note 13.2(c)] have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables from the same categories of customers. The Group or the Company has therefore concluded
that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for
the contract assets.

There are no significant changes as compared to previous year.

Intercompany balances

The Company sometimes provides some financial support assistance via unsecured short term
advances to some of its subsidiaries. The Company monitors the results of these subsidiaries regularly.

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from receivables is
represented by their carrying amounts in the statements of financial position.
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32.3Financial risk management (continued)

a. Credit risk (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Receivables (continued)
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, there are no significant concentrations of credit risk other than the
following receivables due from:

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
One (2022:two) external party(ies) 25,601 50,508 - -
One (2022:0ne) subsidiary - - 85,063 76,587

The exposure of credit risk for trade and other receivables as at the end of the reporting period by geographic
region was:

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Malaysia 75,959 108,055 85,222 76,736
Fiji 14 10 - -
75,973 108,065 85,222 76,736

Recognition and measurement of impairment loss

The Group monitors each receivable individually and uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of
the receivables. Appropriate debts recovery actions are taken to recover overdue debts. These actions
include sending out reminder letters and scheduling repayments such as instalment scheme and contra
arrangement, which are closely monitored by delegated team before commencing any legal proceedings
against the customers.

For sales of properties, as ownership and titles to properties are only transferred to customers upon full
settlement of the purchase consideration, the Group regards the credit risk exposure as low. Moreover,
most of these trade receivables are supported with end-financing from reputable end-financiers, which
have low risk of default.

As construction contracts only involve a few customers, the Group assessed the risk of loss of each
customer individually based on their financial information, historical payment trends and other external
available information. The Group regards the risk of defaults from these contract customers, which are
mostly government related, as low.

For receivables from goods sold and/or services rendered, an allowance matrix is used to measure any
expected credit loss (“ECL”) for a particular year. The Group analyses and studies prior years’ actual
credit loss experience, historical payments trends and other available external credit evaluations to derive
appropriate loss rates.
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32.Financial instruments (continued)

32.3 Financial risk management (continued)

a. Credit risk (continued)

Receivables (continued)

Recognition and measurement of impairment loss (continued)

The following tables provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and other receivables:

Group

2023

Not past due

Past due 0-30 days
Past due 31-60 days
Past due 61-90 days
Past due 91-180 days

Past due more than 180 days

Trade and other receivables

2022

Not past due

Past due 0-30 days

Past due 31-60 days

Past due 61-90 days

Past due 91-180 days

Past due more than 180 days

Trade and other receivables

Loss
Gross allowance Net
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
48,637 - 48,637
2,625 (1) 2,624
774 (19) 755
300 (6) 294
978 (167) 811
39,267 (16,415) 22,852
92,581 (16,608) 75,973
71,938 - 71,938
6,658 (28) 6,630
2,267 (32) 2,235
345 (70) 275
2,267 (344) 1,923
38,715 (13,651) 25,064
122,190 (14,125) 108,065

The movements in the allowance for impairment loss of trade and other receivables during the financial

year are as follows:

Group

Balance at 1 January 2022
Additions
Reversals
Write-offs

Balance at 31 December 2022/1 January 2023

Additions

Balance at 31 December 2023

Trade Other
receivables receivables Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
19,917 9,528 29,445
244 343 587
(623) - (623)
(15,158) (126) (15,284)
4,380 9,745 14,125
63 2,420 2,483
4,443 12,165 16,608
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32.Financial instruments (continued)
32.3 Financial risk management (continued)
a. Credit risk (continued)

Intercompany balances

Generally, the Company does not specifically monitor the ageing of debts owing by its subsidiaries, which are
considered to have low credit risk. As the Company is able to determine the timing of payments of these debts and
manage the utilisation of assets, there is no indication that the amounts due from subsidiaries of RM85,222,000
(2022: RM76,709,000) are not recoverable as at the end of the reporting period. The Company considers a
subsidiary’s debts to be credit impaired when the subsidiary is unlikely to repay its debts to the Company in full. The
Company determines the probability of default for these debts using internal information available.

Financial guarantees
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
The Company provides unsecured financial guarantees to banks in respect of certain banking facilities extended

to certain subsidiaries when required. The Company monitors on an on-going basis the results of and repayments
made by the subsidiaries to ensure that they are able to meet their obligations when due.

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

The maximum exposure to credit risks, being the outstanding financial guarantees granted to the subsidiaries as
at end of the reporting period is summarised as follows:

Company 2023 2022

RM’000 RM’000
Bank guarantees 14,003 28,523
Other loans and borrowings outstanding and recognised in financial statements 117,975 152,803
Total 131,978 181,326

The Company reviews and reassesses the credit risk when a subsidiary’s financial position deteriorates significantly
and makes losses from its operation. The Company considers the financial guarantee to be credit impaired when
the subsidiary is unlikely to repay its credit obligation to the bank in full. The Company determines the probability of
default of the guaranteed loans individually using internal information available.

There is no indication that any subsidiary would default on the repayments of its loans and borrowings. The financial
guarantees have not been recognised as the probability of the subsidiaries defaulting on the credit lines is remote.

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents are held with licensed banks. As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position. These licensed
banks have low credit risks. Consequently, the Group and the Company are of the view that the loss allowance is
not material and hence, it is not provided for.

b. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from its various payables, loans and borrowings.

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

The Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and banking facilities deemed adequate by the
management to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due
and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity
analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts.



172

NAIM HOLDINGS BERHAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

32.Financial instruments (continued)

b. Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturity analysis

32.3.Financial risk management (continued)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and of the Company’s financial liabilities (which
are non-derivatives) as at the end of the reporting period based on undiscounted contractual payments:

Group
2023

Trade and other payables

Loans and borrowings

- secured term loans

- unsecured revolving
credits

- hire purchases

2022

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Loans and borrowings

- secured term loans

- unsecured revolving
credits

- hire purchases

Company

2023

Other payables

- interest bearing

- non interest-bearing

Loans and borrowings

- secured term loan

- unsecured revolving
credits

- hire purchases

Financial guarantees®

2022

Other payables

- interest bearing

- non interest-bearing

Loans and borrowings

- secured term loan

- unsecured revolving
credits

- hire purchases

Financial guarantees®

Carrying
amount
RM’000

252,059
86,475
110,000
489
248,865
3,472

112,303

120,000
___ 647

71,183
2,343
38,500

40,000
297

70,175
3,598
44,500

35,000
388

Contractual
interest rate
%

4.94 - 6.00

5.08 - 5.85
3.74 -6.93

4.79-6.00

3.84 -5.53
3.74 -6.93

4.94-5.35

5.11

5.45-5.82
3.85

3.73-4.86

4.79

4.60-5.12
3.85

More

Contractual Under 1-2 2-5 than
cash flows 1year years years 5years
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
252,059 234,338 2,959 14,762 -
98,300 24,290 21,363 47,881 4,766
111,352 111,352 - - -
518 180 172 166 -
248,865 230,883 3,716 14,266 -
3,472 3,472 - - -
129,562 30,387 24,819 50,155 24,201
121,382 121,382 - - -
698 180 180 338 -
71,183 71,183 - - -
2,343 2,343 - - -
44,240 7,832 7,519 27,835 1,054
40,430 40,430 - - -
315 105 105 105 -
131,978 131,978 - - -
70,175 70,175 - - -
3,598 3,598 - - -
52,412 7,918 7,713 21,413 15,368
35,343 35,343 - - -
419 105 105 209 -
181,326 181,326 - - -

* Being corporate guarantees granted for banking facilities of certain subsidiaries [see Note 32.3(a)], which will only be encashed in
the event of default by the subsidiaries. These financial guarantees do not have an impact on group contractual cash flows.
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32.Financial instruments (continued)

32.3.Financial risk management (continued)

c. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and other prices
risks that will affect the Group’s financial position or cash flows.

i

Currency risk

The Group is occasionally exposed to foreign currency risk on bank balances denominated in a currency other
than the respective functional currencies of Group entities. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily United
States Dollar (“USD”).

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

As it is not possible to predict with any certainty, the movements of foreign exchange rates, this risk
is managed on an on-going basis. As at the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have any
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts.

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The exposure to foreign currency risk, attributable to a currency which is other than the functional
currency of the Group entities, based on the carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period was:

2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000

Cash and cash equivalents denominated in USD
- Group 5,420 4,904
- Company 5,266 4,798

A 10% (2022: 10%) strengthening of the RM against USD at the end of the reporting period would have
decreased equity and post-tax profit by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign
currency exchange rate variances that the Group/Company considered to be reasonably possible at the
end of the reporting period. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant.

Equity and Profit

or loss
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000
uUsD
- Group (412) (373)
- Company (400) (365)

A 10% (2022: 10%) weakening of RM against USD at the end of the reporting period would have had
equal but opposite effect on the above currency to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.
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32.Financial instruments (continued)
32.3Financial risk management (continued)
c. Market risk (continued)

ii. Interest rate risk

The Group’s investments in fixed-rate term deposits and fixed-rate loans and borrowings are exposed to a risk
of change in their fair value due to changes in interest rates. The Group’s variable rate loans and borrowings are
exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates. Investment in equity securities and
short-term receivables and payables are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk on an on-going basis to ensure that there are no undue
exposures thereto. Management exercises a certain element of discretion on whether to borrow at fixed or

floating interest rates, depending on the market situation and the outlook of the financial market prevailing then.

The investments in interest-earning assets are mainly short-term in nature and they are not held for speculative
purposes but have been mostly placed as term deposits and cash funds.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Group’s and of the Company’s significant interest-bearing financial instruments,
based on their carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period was:

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Fixed-rates instruments
- Financial assets 192,673 250,382 18,901 27,764
- Financial liabilities (144,598) (165,504) (40,297) (35,388)

Floating rates instruments
- Financial assets - - 74,620 69,920
- Financial liabilities (52,366)  (67,446) (109,683) (114,675)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
a. Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, and the Group does not designate derivatives as hedging instruments under a fair value hedge
accounting model. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would not affect
profit or loss.

b. Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points (bp) in interest rates at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the contractual repayments terms of its floating rate instruments, would have increased/
(decreased) equity and post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown in the ensuing page. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.



32.Financial instruments (continued)
32.3Financial risk management (continued)
c. Market risk (continued)

ii. Interest rate risk

Floating rate instruments
- Group
- Company

iii. Other price risk
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Equity and Profit or Loss
2023 2022
100bp 100bp 100bp 100bp
increase decrease increase decrease

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

(1,089) 1,089 (1,639) 1,639
(832) 832 (1,264) 1,264

Equity price risk arises from the Group’s investments in equity securities.

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

Management monitors and manages the equity investments on individual basis. The exposure to equity
price risk is not material and hence, sensitivity analysis is not presented.

324 Fair value information

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, short-term receivables and payables and short-term
borrowings reasonably approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-term nature of these financial

instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value and those not carried at fair value for

Fair value of
financial instruments
carried at fair value

(Level 1)
Group RM’000

2023
Financial
assets
Other investments 55
Trade and other
receivables -

Fair value of

financial instruments Total
not carried at fair value
(Level 2) (Level3) Total value amount
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

fair Carrying

- - - 3,018 3,018

- 25,601 25,601 25,601 25,601

175

Financial
liabilities
Loans and
borrowings
- unsecured
revolving
credits -
- secured term
loans =
- hire purchases =

- 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000

- 87,087 87,087 87,087 86,475
489 - 489 489 489
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32.Financial instruments (continued)

32.4Fair value information (continued)

Group

2022

Financial

assets

Other investments

Trade and other
receivables

Financial
liabilities
Loans and
borrowings
- unsecured
revolving
credits
- secured term
loans
- hire purchases

Company
2023

Financial liabilities

Loans and borrowings

- unsecured revolving
credits

- secured term loans

- hire purchase

2022

Financial liabilities

Loans and borrowings

- unsecured revolving
credits

- secured term loans

- hire purchase

Fair value of
financial instruments
carried at fair value
(Level 1) (Level 3) Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Fair value of

financial instruments Total
not carried at fair value fair Carrying
(Level 2) (Level3) Total value amount

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

54 2,963 3,017 - . - 3,017 3,017
- - - - 38,108 38,108 38,108 38,108
- - - - 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000
- - - - 112,580 112,580 112,580 112,303
- - - 647 - 647 647 647
- - - - 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
- - - - 38936 38,936 38936 38,500
- - - 297 - 297 _ 297 297
- - - - 35000 35,000 35000 35,000
- - E - 44569 44,569 44,569 44,500
- = - 388 - 388 388 388
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32.Financial instruments (continued)

33.

32.4Fair value information (continued)

The Group does not have any outstanding financial derivatives as at 31 December 2023.
Policy on transfer between levels

The fair value of an asset to be transferred between levels is determined as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

Level 1 fair value

Level 1 fair value is derived from quoted price (unadjusted) in active market for identical financial assets or
financial liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Fair value of financial assets that are quoted in an active market are determined by reference to their quoted
closing bid price at the end of the reporting period.

Level 2 fair value

Level 2 fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the financial assets or financial liabilities, either directly or indirectly.

Fair value of non-derivative financial liabilities, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated
based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market interest rates
at the end of the reporting period. For hire purchases, the market interest rate is determined by reference to
similar lease arrangements.

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values

There has been no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values during the current and previous financial
year.

Level 3 fair value
Level 3 fair value is estimated using unobservable inputs for the financial assets or financial liabilities.

Fair values within Level 3 for financial instruments not carried at fair value, which is determined for disclosures
purpose, are derived based on discounted cash flows using unobservable input (i.e. interest rate). The
estimated fair value would increase (decrease) when the interest rate was lower (higher).

For financial instruments carried at fair value, the fair value within Level 3 is derived by reference to the net
assets of the investee, adjusted for the effect of market value of assets and/or the estimated discounted cash
flows of the investee’s operations, where applicable.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain healthy capital base and safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, so as to maintain the confidence of various stakeholders in the Group
and to sustain the future development of the business.

As at end of reporting period, the Group is in net equity surplus position of RM1,307,538,000 with total loans
and borrowings of RM196,964,000, which gives rise to a gearing ratio of approximately 15% and is below the

debt to equity ratio of not exceeding 1 time (see Note 20.3).

There were no changes in the Group’s strategy and approach on capital management during the year.
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34. Capital expenditure commitments
Group
2023

2022

RM’000 RM’000

35.

Property, plant and equipment

- Authorised but not contracted for 20,000 15,000
Investment properties

- Authorised and contracted for - 1,200
- Authorised but not contracted for - 30,000

20,000 46,200

Related parties
Identity of related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group or the
Company if the Group or the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or jointly control the
parties or exercise significant influence over the parties in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, or where the Group or the Company and the parties are subject to common controls. Related parties
may be individuals or other entities.

Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly and
entity that provides key management personnel services to the Group. The key management personnel include
all the Directors of the Group and certain members of senior management of the Group.

The Group has related party relationships with its subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and key management
personnel.

Significant related party transactions

Significant related party transactions, other than compensations paid/payable to key management personnel
(see Note 27), are disclosed below:

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Subsidiaries
Management fee income - - (2,550) (2,428)
Management fee expense - - 1,314 1,284
Rental expense on premises - - 234 234
Interest income - - (3,768) (3,178)
Interest expense - - 3,798 2,571
Associates
Construction costs payable 158,737 157,130 - -
Dividend income (8,412) (4,206) (8,412) (4,206)
Sales of goods (160) (66) - -
Rental income on premises (50) - - -

Rental expense on equipment 39 - = ”




35.

36.

Related parties (continued)
Significant related party transactions (continued)

Group
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000
Joint venture

Distribution of profit - 1,530
Key management personnel

Sale of property profit (3,339) -
Acquisition of subsidiary 800 -
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Company
2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000

The balances with the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are disclosed in Notes 12 and 21 to the

financial statements.

The above related party transactions are based on negotiated terms.

Changes in investments in subsidiaries

i. Acquisition of a new subsidiary

On 30 November 2023, a direct subsidiary, Naim Academy Sdn. Bhd. (“NACSB”) acquired approximately
53.3% of the equity interest in Mawar Education Centre Sdn. Bhd.(“MECSB”) for a cash consideration
of RM800,000 from a director of the Company. MECSB is involved in the education business, a new
operation in which the Group intends to embark on to create more quality township development that are

integrated with modern education facilities.

The acquisition price is determined by reference to the identifiable fair value of the net assets of MECSB
which approximate their fair value and a goodwill of about RM60,000 is recognised arising from the

acquisition.

Net assets acquired

Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Other current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Other current liabilities

Total identifiable net assets acquired
Goodwill on acquisition (Note 9)

Total purchase consideration

Net cash inflow arising from acquisition of MECSB

Purchase consideration,settled in cash
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

Net cash inflow arising from acquisition

Group
2023
RM’000

101
48
138
42
823
(411)
(1)

Group
2023
RM’000
(800)
1,544

744

The acquisition of MECSB also leads to a recognition of minority interest of RM648,000 on acquisition.
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36.

37.

38.

Changes in investments in subsidiaries (continued)
ii. Additional investments arising from new shares issued by existing subsidiaries

On 17 November 2023, the Company subscribed for additional 800,000 new ordinary shares issued by
NACSB for a cash consideration of RM800,000.

During the last financial year, the Company subscribed for additional 50,000 new ordinary shares issued by
its wholly owned subsidiary, Naim Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (“NESB”) for a cash consideration of RM50,000.
The share proceeds arising therefrom were subsequently used by NESB to redeem in full 50,000 preference
shares previously issued to a minority shareholder. The preference shares were thereupon cancelled.

Later in the last financial year, the Company subscribed for another 40,000,000 new ordinary shares
issued by NESB for a total consideration of RM40,000,000, settled by way of cash of RM3,600,000 and
capitalisation of debts owing thereto amounting to RM36,400,000.

The above share subscriptions do not have any material impact to the Group as there are no changes in
the Group’s equity interests in NACSB and NESB.

Dilution in equity interest in Perdana Petroleum Berhad (“PPB”)

During the current year under review, approximately 2,883,000 (2022: 795,000) redeemable convertible preference
shares (“RCPS”) in PPB were converted into ordinary shares by the RCPS holders of PPB. Nevertheless, the
Group’s resultant equity interest in PPB following the conversion of RCPS did not vary much from the 3.47%
reported as of 31 December 2022. At the same time, another 24.22% owned associate of the Company, Dayang
Enterprise Holdings Bhd. (“DEHB”) also recorded a dilution in its ownership interest in PPB, from 63.69% in 2022
t0 63.61% in 2023 as a result of the RCPS conversion.

The dilution in the equity interest in PPB arising from the above RCPS conversions, after considering both direct
and indirect interests held therein, was accounted for as a loss on deemed disposal amounting to RM205,000
(2022: RM55,000), which was recognised as other non-operating expense in profit or loss (see Note 25).

Material litigation
Contract litigation

On 12 November 2020, a wholly owned subsidiary, Naim Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (“NESB”) received a Writ of
Summons together with a Statement of Claim from a subcontractor in respect of two completed works package
projects. The claim against NESB was for damages and/or compensation in the sum of about RM32,935,000,
or alternatively a sum of about RM29,595,000, costs of engaging an expert and/or the continuous costs until the
completion of the suit, judgement interest and costs.

Following the stay of proceedings in favour of arbitration as agreed by both parties, a Notice of Arbitration dated
16 July 2021 was received on 19 July 2021. On 11 April 2022, NESB agreed to the appointment of a sole
arbitrator. The appointed Arbitrator had ordered, inter-alia, for the hearing dates to be fixed in July 2024 and
August 2024. Pursuant to the directive from the arbitrator, both parties’ quantum expert witnesses had submitted
their assessment reports on the parties’ claims and counter-claims on 12 January 2024 and their rebuttal reports
on 22 March 2024. The next due dates for submission of joint statement and supplementary reports by the
parties’ quantum expert witnesses are scheduled on 3 May 2024 and 31 May 2024 respectively.

The Group is of the view that the claim by the subcontractor is frivolous. As such, the Group does not expect the
claim to succeed and is of the view that the claim does not have material financial and/or operational impact to the
Group. Notwithstanding, in the event that the claim is allowed by the Arbitrator, the financial impact is limited to
what is claimed by the subcontractor in the Statement of Claim. The Group has instructed its solicitor to vigorously
contest the claim.



